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Thames Water is the largest water and wastewater services
company in the UK, supplying domestic and commercial customers
in London and the Thames Valley. The Utility business serves
11.7 million customers. In addition to the UK operations, the
International, Products and Services divisions provide a range
of services to a growing number of customers in many parts
of the world.

Thames Water has four principles which guide all aspects of management. They are to:

seek 1o excel

put the customer first

respect the employee as an individual

care for the environment
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Financial highlights

Year ended 31 March b
Pre-tax profit

Post-tax profit

Earnings per ordinary share

Dividend per ordinary share

1997
Excluding
bond premium

£384.0m
£330.9m
85.5p

34.4p

Pre-tax profit tm

1997

Including
bond premium

£371.8m
£320.4m
82.8p

34.4p

410
349
314
377
399 [

1996
Excluding
exceptional items

£323.7m
£298.5m
74.3p

28.3p

Turnover £m

1996

Ineluding
exceptional items

£228.7m
£203.5m
50.7p

28.3p
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Chairman’s statement Thames Water has had an excellent year.
Our core business continues to make QOOd progress. Following the
successful implementation of our strategic review last year, the non-
regulated activities we retained are earning good profits, confirming
our confidence in them. Total commitment to meeting the needs of
customers lies at the heart of our strategy.

The financial results are good. Overall profit before tax and
exceptional items increased from £324m to £384m. In July last
vear, we restructured our balance sheet, repurchasing 10% of
our shares. As a result of this buy-back and our performance,
earnings per share have risen substantially from 74.3p to
85.5p, before exceptional iterms. Your Board is, therefore,
recommending a final dividend of 23.2p, giving a 22% increase
in the total dividend for 1996/97 to 34.4p.

The Utility business had a first-class year. We have continued
to imprave both our drinking water quality and the performance
of our wastewater treatment works. Caring for the
environment continues to be a top priority for Thames Water.
Service levels to our customers have also risen, with new
services on offer to meet their needs for the future. We are
particularly proud that average bills to cur custormers remain
the lowest in England and Wales,

The last two years have been the driest in the UK fer more

1 Sir Robert Clarke, Chairman, at the

Customer Centre. Swindon tharf twp cgntunes. At the tlr'ne of writing, rainfall levels,

2 Thames Water Utilities provides water particularly in London, remain well below average. We are
services 10 7.4 milion domestic working closely with the Environment Agency, and are grateful
customers, and wastewater services to all our customers who have responded to our calls to use
to 1.7 milion

water wisely. We have now kept supplies going without any
hosepipe bans for six years, but as the extraordinary long-term
drought continues, it becomes ever mare difficult to maintain
this record.

The new year brought its own set of challenges with a bitterly
cold spell which saw the River Thames freeze in places west of
London for the first time in more than 30 years. Leakage is now
declining as a result of our £200m reduction programmse.

These difficult operating conditions have demanded great
commitment from our staff, and | am delighted with the way in
which they have risen to meet the challenges. On your behalf,
I do want to thank every one of them.

Qur investment in the Utility business reached the record level
this year of £401m, bringing the total since privatisation to
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£2.7bn - some £500rm moere than profits earned over
the same period. Substantial investment is central to our
commitment to offer customers a top quality service
inte the futurs.

In ling with the stratagy we announced last year, we have
started to implement our portfolio of long-term operating
contracts around the world.

We have now added a new concession, to supply water to half
of Jakarta, the rapidly developing capitat city of Indonesia.
Together, these contracts will supply a growing stream of
unregulated earnings well beyond the year 2000.

We successfully sold the majority of ocur design and
contracting businesses within the provisions we announced
in March 1986, The remaining activities are being managed
out by other Group companies.

Our Products, Services, Properiy and Insurance businesses all
achieved good results for the year.

At the time of writing, the precise details of the Government's
proposed ‘windfall' tax remain unclear. However, we hope to
look beyond this imposition and to establish a productive
relationship with those key Government ministries which
spensor and support our activities in the UK and overseas.
The Company has responded positively to the Government's
new proposals for the water industry.

Two long serving non-Executive Directors, John Thomson
and John Woerlidge, are retiring from the Board at the
Annual General Meeting. We shall miss their wise counsel
as Chairmen of our Audit and our Environmental

Review Committees, respectively.

However, David Clementi's appointment in January 1997
means that Thames Water retains a strong team of

ron-Executive Directors on our main Board.

Our Shareholder Open Day has become an enjoyable fixture in
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the Thames Water calendar. This year, we hope shareholders
will join us at the Maple Lodge sewage treatment works in
Hertfordshire in September. An invitation is enclosed with

this report.

As we move forward, the growing success of our strategy
provides the foundation to maintain real dividend growth, as
well as an ever better service for our customers in London and
the Thames Valley, and around the world. We can ook to the
future with confidence. ‘

P o Clocrn

- Sir Robert Clarke, Chairman
!
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Operating review All divisions of Thames Water have shown an
improved performance this year. In the Utility business, we have
continued to enhance our service quality and operational efficiency and
have met our investment targets. Our non-regulated businesses, which
have been refocused to build on our core strengths, are under new
management and have each improved their trading performance.

Utility operations

The regulated Utility division is the major part of our husines
and is responsiple for the supply of drinking water and the
collection, treatment and disposal of wastewaier for our
domestic and business customers in London and the
Thames Valiey.

Turnover of the division showed an increase of 2.4% 10
£098m. Operating profits were increased by 5% to £414m
We have continued to improve our efficiency. Operating ¢
4 Sl Alexander, Managing Director . reduced by 1%, excluding infrastructure renewals and
2 —mames Water uses arange of depreciation.
~ethods to locate leaks, from
--& latest technology to the
more traditional

Low Rainfall

Rainfall in the Thames Water region has been exceptionat
low. Over the last year, wé received only 70% of the
long-term average.

Despite this, we have S0 far maintained supplies to our
customers, without imposing any restrictions and without
large-scale interuptions to supply. This is due not only to
prudent resource management and heavy capital investr |
since privatisation, but also the co-operation of our custo
in being careful with their water usage.

In preparation for summer 1997, we have introduced a ni
of new conservation measures and we are investing £8n
develop new groundwater sites. These wil provide an e
4.5 milion gallons per day in London.

Leakage

We have more than 800 people involved in an ambitious
project to halve leakage by the year 2000 from our exte
water system. We have committed over £200m o deliv
target, High water pressure, difficult ground conditions &
heavy traffic congestion cause particular leakage proble
London. However, as a result of our efforts and despite

gevere cold spell in January this year which caused pipe
freeze and burst, we are rmaking considerable progress

towards achieving our aim.




—

Thames Water 3

3 The Fire Service use our water for
training purposes, as well as far
fighting fires

4 Thames Water has over 300,000
commercial custormers

Improvements in Customer Service

We have continuec ‘o achieve higher standards and to develop

new services to mest cur customers’ needs. In December

1996, Thames Waier was presented with three Utility Industry

Awards, including & accolade for Customer Care. During the

year:

- we have improved our drinking water quality again, with
29.5% of tests maeting regulatory standards

- 99% of our custcmers were served by sewage treatment
works complying with the 'look-up’ tables in the Environment
Agency's conseris

- we have continusd to reduce the nurmber of properties
affected by low water pressure, and have further improved
our response to customer queries and complaints

- we are offering f2e meter installations to our domestic
customers, as part of our water efficiency programme

- Thames Water kome Assist is a new service we are offering,
in partnership wiin Green Fag. This provides a helpline to
assist customers to contact reputable plumbers and a
comprehensive insurance-based protection package for
the home

- the autumn of 1238 saw the appointment of community
partners to work with customers and local groups. bringing
the Comparny clcser to the communities we serve.

We will continue to consult our customers to ensure our plans
meet their needs for the future,

Investing in Quality

Rigorous asset planning procedures, effective project
management and successful partnerships with our contractors
have enabled us to dsliver our capital prograrmrne for 1996/97.
We spent £401m in the year. We delivered these resuits while
achieving material efficiency savings against the target set at
the last price review.

Particular achievemenits during the year include:

- improving drinking water quality through the installation: of
the ‘superfiter’ at two more of our major water treatment
works in north and west tondon, and the completion of
advanced water treatment projects in Guildford and
south London

- further improvements in water quality have been
achieved through cur mains rehabilitation programme;
more than 500 miles of mains were refurbished during
the year

- the completion of five wastewater treatment projects
and the start of 35 new projects to meet environmentat
standards, improve reliability and increase capacity
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1 The Company owns over 100 Iisted
buildings. We have been working
with English Heritage on a £1.2m
conservation project at Abbey Mils

2 We have made good progress on the

construction of the sewage sludge
incineration plants at Beckton and
Crossness in east London to meet
tough EU requiremnents

3 Cur new management support
centre at Maple Lodge sewage
treatment works enables us to
menitor and centrol our sewerage
network systerm more effectively

- we made good progress on two major tunnelling projects
in the Cray Valley, Kent and in north London to alleviate
the rigk of flooding to some 1,800 properties.

During the year, we announced discretionary investment
of £150m in addition to our base investment programme.

Water Efficiency
Qur new water conservation plan was described by Ofwat
as a 'clear and comprehensive strategy’.

A Water Efficiency booklet has been made freely available
to all our customers, and Thames Water was the first water
company in the country to offer the ‘Hippo’ - a new water
saving device designed to fit inside toilet cisterns, saving

up to five pints of water per flush.

Environment
The Environmental Review Committee’s report of
environmental performance is shown on page 21.

We were pleased to receive a Queen Mother's Birthday
Award in recognition of our waste reduction activities and
our work on the ThamesCiean project. We also won a
Berkshire Environment Award for the third year in
succession for our environmental performance.

During the autumn, we were involved in a public inquiry,
widely seen as a test case, at which we contested the
Environment Agency’s decision to restrict future abstractions
from our Axford site by the River Kennet. We based our
case on extensive studies showing that cur abstraction of
groundwater had minimal effect on the ecology of the river.
The Secretary of State’s decision is expected in late 1997.

Research and Development

This year, we increased research on infrastructure
significanthy, particularly in support of our leakage reduction
programme. Computer modeis, based on studies in
London, have been developed to improve the targeting of
our investment programme.




Our internasionally scclaimed research on managing the
balance between the use of chlorine and meeting regulatory
standards has enadled us to deliver higher quality drinking
water 1o our customers.

We have aiso developed two new waste processing
technologies which are not only environmentally friendly, but
also efficient to operate. These processes convert municipal
waste and sewags sludge to useful energy. thereby reducing
the amounis which go to landfill.

The Future

QOur performance this year has again demonstrated the
strength of our core business and the expertise and
commitment of our Utility employees. We are confident we will
continue to improve our performance in customer services and
in the standards we meet in water and wastewater quality. An
example of & new service we are now offering is to repair
significant leaks in customers’ pipes free of charge.

The protracted dry spel has continued into the first six months
of 1997. Without significant amounts of rain in the next few
weeks, it wil become more difficult to avoid restrictions.

Preparations are already underway for the next price review in
1999. This will involve extensive studies of our future investment
needs to maet new and existing standards, to maintain cur
assets, to improve our service levels and to make provision for
growth in demand. We hope that future investment levels are
not put at risk by an excessive ‘windfall’ tax levy.

Property

Our strategy - to seek profitable development of our surplus
land while taking inte account the needs of the environment ~
has made & good contribution to the Company's income.
Operating profit for the year was £11.2m on turnover of £23m.
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4 We are in partnership wits The
Wildfow! & Wetlands Trus: at Barn
Elms, where construction of a new
centre is well underway. alongside
the 30 acres of high quality housing
being developed by Berkeley Homes

We have recently secured the future of a redundant Grade |l
listed pumping station at Surbiton by gaining planning consent
to convert it to a leisure centre and créche. This is an excellent
use for such an historic building which the Company no lenger
requires for operational purposes.

Cur joint venture company with Berkeley Homes has built its
first houses and is returring a profit in its first year of operation.
This joint venture will focus on sites owned by Thamas Water
and adjoining fand where added value can be achievad by a
joint development.

Insurance

Qur captive insurance company (Isis} made an cperating profit
of £7.6m which inciudes net investment income of £7m. Isis
had £60m of investments at the year end, valued individually at
the lower of cost or market value.




International operations

During the year, the International division has shown an
improved financial perfarrnance, with an operating profit of
£2.8m on turnover of £172m. This follows the successful
implementation of last year's strategic review where we set
out our intention to withdraw from design and construction
activities and 1o focus on concession centracts in countries
where we already have a presence or can employ our

core expertise. We were pleased to confirm at the Interim
resulis last November that we had completed successfully the
sale of the UK contracting and German consulting businesses
to Black and Veaich of Kansas, USA. The remaining activities
are being managed cut by other Group companies.

The progress made on our international operations and on new
developments over the year is summarised below:

Turkey

Thames Water is working with Turkish partners to build and
then operate for 15 years the domestic and industrial water
supply system for the city of [zmit and its surrounding areas,
which, taken together, have a populaticn of 1.2 milion. The
project has a total value of USE800m and the design and
construction work remains ahead of programme and within
budget.

Australia

Qur concession in Adelaide, in partnership with Compagnie
Générale des Eaux (CGE), is for the operation of the existing
water and wastewater networks and associated treatrment
works which serve a population of 1.2 milion. Performance to
date has been good and during the year, United Water, the
joint operating company with CGE, successfully bid for two
additiona! contracts in New Zealand and Indonesia.

Malaysia

Tharmes Water has & joint venture to operate a 25-year
concession for the management of the drinking water
system throughout the state of Kelantan, serving a
population of 600,000.



Key achievements iast year included the cormmissioning of
anew wate- laborazory and a 20% increase in the volume of
water supp ad.

Thailand

Pathum Thani provace has a pepulation of 800,000 people
and fes directly no=h of Bangkok in Thailand. Tharmes Water
are in partrership with a local construction company on a
£95m cont-act to casign, construct and operate & new water
treatment = ant sersing the province.

The centras: perios is 30 months and the plant wit commence
operation i May 1£98. The project is on schedule “or the
completior date.

China

In China, ws have z partnership with Bovis which irvolves the
constructic~ and cueration of & water treatrment piant to supply
two milion zeople v Shanghai. The client for this LS$68m
contract is The Shanghat Municipal Water Compary.

The first wezer procJction is scheduied for Octobe~ this year
and work iz on pregramme,

.
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1 Construcuon of a water treatrment
plant in Shanghar. China is making
good progress

2 In Adelaide. Austraha, we have a
15-year concession. in partnership
withy CGE

3 Thames \Water is rwolved in the
largest ever international investment
project in Turkey

4 Water qualty samicing in Pathurm
Thani. Thailand

Puerto Rico

We have a joint venture with the Dick Corporation of Pittsburgh,
USA to provide water services to San Juan, which has a
population of 1.6 milion,

Thames Water is providing process design expertise and witi
subsequently operate the service for an initial five-year period,
with an option to extend this to 20 years. The contract has
been delayed recently but our invoivernent is such that there
wilt be no materiat financial impact on Thames Water.

Jakarta - A New Project

On & June, we announced we had signed an agreement with
the existing public sector water supply authority, Pam Jaya, for
a concession 1o operate the eastern half of the water supply
system in Jakarta, for a rapidly growing population which is
now more than five million.

Thames Water will lead a consortium as the majority
shareholder, and the term of the concession is 25 years.

The Future

Over the next year, we wil build on the progress we have
made on our existing concessions and devalop new
opportunities overseas. Jakarta wil make a significart
contribution to our overseas business in future years.




10 Thamssz Wais

PCI Mebranes ~as successiuly
launchez their = 2mbrane treatment
process which ~#moves colour from
upland water. w st minimising the
use of c~emica s Vhe Scoftish Water
Authoriz 2s are - -.v operating six of
theses - as

Metre Rad offers 2 pipeline cleaning
service 15 muns 2al and commercis’
custone-s

Thames \Wasie ".'znagement has had
ageod y2ar. T2 second landfil site
at Bedc ngton. &2 uth London, wil
commsa-2e shoy

Thames Water Products

During the year, we have continued our strategy of developing
water and wastewater products for municipal markets around
the world. On turnover of £72m, this division made an
operating profit of £4.5m.

Thames Municipal Products (TMP) supplies water treatment
and distribution equipment and fitlings. FB Leopold and
Ashbrook, USA based, and Simon Hartley in the UK supply
equipment to municipal and industrial custorners worldwide.
Leopold have recently won a major contract to instafl &

75 million galions per day filtration plant at a water treatment
works in South Carolina, USA. PCI Membranes had another
good year.

Thames Water Services

This division has been reocrganised in the year, including

the establishment of a new streetwork service following the
transfer of activities and over 400 employees from the Utilities
business. The Morgan Collis group has also been rationalised.

We were pleased to acquire the 409% share of Subterra held by
Northumbrian Water, which brings this pipeline refurbishment
company into Thames Water's full ownership.

Qur grounds maintenance group has continued its strong
performance, winning major contracts around the UK,
including services to the City of Birmingham.

The Services division has had a good year and

rmade an operating profit of £6.5m on turnover of £110m.
The reorganisations that have taken place have postioned
this division to further improve performance over the
corming year.

Bill Alexander, Managing Director

BHM-AL L
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Thames Water peoplie in action We continue to invest in the
development of our employees at all levels. We place great emphasis on
encouraging open and direct communication with staff and are developing
new approaches to achieve higher standards. The Group employs some
11,000 people.

1 Swart Windsco- and his 'Free Meters'
team at the Customer Centre, Swindon,
Team working 15 an important part of
working life a: Thames Water

2 Neil Vickers. London Water Operations,
5 working in & development role as the
Kempton Parx water treatment plant
manager. 1o gain experience of running
& major works

Management Development

All managers in Thames Water have participated in
developrment activities aimed at improving their effectiveness
and impact within the business. in addition, our Leadership
Developrment Programme offers an opportunity to a cross-
section of managers to improve their team working and

3 Jane Harnas has worked for our
grounds maintenznce division for

two years. caring for the Royal Parks influencing skills. '
in London
4 Training of local employees in the use Employee Opinion Survey
of new teshnology and different ways The second employee opinion survey results were published

of waorking forms an important

; and, once again, showed exceptionally high levels of
element ¢t our international projects

commitment and job satisfaction. We teke employees’
concerns very seriously and are addressing both these and
other important issues through employes focus groups, set up
to provide a forurm for discussion of ideas on improverments
within the Company.

International

Thames Water staff bring their expertise to our overseas
projects and are critical to business success. This experience
also contributes 1o their own ick satisfaction and personal
development. '

~
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Financial review The strong growth in operating profit of £65m to
£441m was due to greatly improved financial performance in the
non-regulated trading businesses and to good progress in the Utility.

1 David Lufrum,
Finance and Pla-1ing Director

Underlying earnings (p per share)
I Earnings {p per share)
M Dividend (p per share)

96/97 95 &5 94795 93 tX 92/93

Net cash used for

Capital investments 42%
B Share buy-back 26%

Dividends and tax 21%
| Equity investments 2%
¥ Interest 7%

Cther 2%

MNet cash obtained from
Qperating cash flow 65%
Capital receipts 5%

B Borowing 30%

Financial Results

Group operating profit increased by 17% to £441m.
The operating margin of 34.2% was 2.7% higher than
the 31.5% IN 1986.

Turnover of £1,287m was 8% greater than the previous year,

In Miarch 19986, the Board decided to withdraw from stand-
alone design and construction activities. As a result, a
non-operating exceptional charge of £95m was made in

the 1995/96 accounts, comprising write-cdown of assets,
reorganisation costs, and the write-back of geodwil. Good
progress has been made with the implementation of the
withcrawal strategy with the disposal of the UK contracting
and German consulting operations during the year. Although
the rernaining provision is considered to be adequate, there are
some residual issues. As a resutt, there has been no release of
the unutilised provision at 31 March 1897. The position will be
evaluated during 1997/98.

The Company repurchased Convertible Bonds with a nominal
value of £35.8m for £47.8m during the year. The premium of
£12.2m is shown separately in the profit and loss account.

The Group has become liable to pay mainstream corporation
tax in 1997. The tax charge of £51.4m represents an effective
tax rate of 13.8% which takes account of the availability of
capital alfowances from the extensive capital investment
programme. The full rate of corporation tax is unlikely to
apply until well after the year 2000.

Underlying earnings per share grew by 15% to 85.5p.
Improvernents arose from increased profitability and the
reduced number of shares in issue as a result of the share
buy-back (see below) but these were partially offset by the
higher tax charge. The increase in earnings per share after
exceptional charges was 63%.

Shareholder Returns

On average, there were 387.0rn shares in issue during the year.

This was a 3.6% reduction over the previous year. The following

transactions contributed to the movement:

- the repurchase by the Company of 41.4m ordinary shares
following approval by shareholders at last year's Annual
General Mesting - ’

- the issue of 10.8m ordinary shares resulting from decisions
of bondholders to convert bonds to the value of £46.2m
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- the decision by some shareholders to take dividends in the
form of new shares.

An increase in the dividend per share of 22% is proposed. This

reflects the Board's commitment to continue its policy of real

dividend growth which is supported by:

- the share buy-back which reduces by 10% the number of
shares attracting a dividend

~ a strong contribution by the non-regulated businesses to
Group profits

= continuing profit growth in the regulated Utility,

Full year dividends were covered 2.4 timss by earnings.

Before exceptional items, the return on shareholders' funds
was 14.9% compared with 14.0% in 1996,

Capital Assets and Capita! Structure

Total investment in fixed assets during the year was £410m of
which £401m was in the Utfity company. The benefits of the
Utility’s investment are reflected in major improvements in
quality and custormer service indicators. Equity investrment of
£18m was alsc made in our joint venture companies to assist
with the financing of our major overseas operating
concessions, and build, operate and transfer (BOT) projects.

The funding policy of the Group is to maintain a broad portfolio
of debt, diversified by source and maturity. The current maturity
profile of the gross debt of £1,092m at 31 March 1997 is shown
in the chart above.

Net debt increased by £248m to £889m, largely as a result of
the share buy-back and the associated tax charge. Together,
these amounted to £271m. Gearing was 41.0% at the year end,
compared with 29.6% at 31 March 1996. interest costs reflect
mainly the timing and life of debt raised. Lower short-term
interest rates during 1996/87 are reflected in a reduction in the
weighted average interest rate to 7.5%, from the 8.3% average
in the previous year, Interest in the year was covered 7.8 times
by underlying earnings.

Future Financing

Investment in the first five years since privatisation was almost
£2bn. In the second five years up to 31 March 2000, a similar
sum will be invested, including an additional £150m of
discretionary investment anncunced in October 1998,

Thames Water 13
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The Company may also be required 1o finance a special utilties
‘windfall’ tax but, at the time of writing, the scale and details of
such a tax are not known.

Further capital market funding will be raised as appropriate
to meet these financing needs and for other corporate
pUrposes.

Treasury Policy

Group treasury operations are managed centrally by a small
specialist tearn. The objective is 1o ensure the avaitability of

a timely flow of funds at a cost which refiects the credit
worthiness of the Group. Treasury is managed as a cost
centre, not a profit centre. Formal staterments of treasury
policies and procedures are in place, which are established and
monitored by the Board.

A framework of cradit criteria to ensure acceptable counter-
party risk across a broad range of financial transactions is
regularly reviewed and adjusted from time to time.

The Group’s approach to treasury management is to protect
profits against risks arising from adverse moverments in interest
rates and currency exposures. Matching of agsets and liabilities
Is carried out wherever practicable. Swap instruments, forward
rate contracts and options in specific circumstances are used
to hedge interest rate and currency risks. No material open
positions are taken.

A ratio of 60% fixed rate to 40% floating rate is now used as a
guide in making decisions on maturities. The percentage of
floating rate debt at the year end was 39%. A proportion (20%)
of floating rate debt is protected by interest rate collars.

Going Concern

The finances of the Company are sound and the balance sheet
remains strong. The Directors expect that the Group has
adequate resources to continue its operational existence for
the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

Wpope— A

D J Luffrum, Finance and Planning Director
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Board members

From left to right

1 David Csment
Sir Robet Clarke
John Worlidge
John Thomsen

2 Tony Hcoson
Bill Alexznder
Roger Carr
David Luffrum

3 8ir Christopher Leaver
Bill Harpar
David Badcock

Executive Directors

Sir Robert Clarke (68)
Chairman

Appointed to the Board of Thames
Water Authority in July 1888 and
became Chairman of Thames

Water Plc on 1 April 1894, From April
1996, Sir Robert has been full-time
Executive Chairman. Chairman of
Share Cealing and Nomination
Commitiees.

Bill Alexander (50)

Managing Director, was appointed 1o
the Board of Thames Water Plc in
April 1994, A Chariered Engineer, he
joined Thames Walter as Engineering
Director in 1989 and was appointed
Managing Direclor of Thames Water
Utilities Lirnited in February 1982,
Amongst his responsibilities was the
construction of the Thames Water
Ring Main.

Bili Harper (53}

Strategy Director, was appointed to
the Board of Thames Water Authority
in March 1989. He joined Thames
Water Authority in 1974 as Chief
Accountant. He was Managing
Director of Thames Water Authority
1985 to 1989, Deputy Chairman of
Thames Water Utilities Limited 1989
1o 1992, Deputy Chairman of
Thames Water Internationa! 1992 to
1994, and Divisional Director.
Products and Services 1994 t¢
1996. He is 2 member of the
Envircnmental Review Committes.

David Luffrum (52)

Finance and Pianning Direcior, was
appointed to the Board of Thames
Water Authority in March 1989, An
Accountant, he joined Thamas Water
Authority in 1974, having previously
held financial posts in the Thames
Conservancy. He became Finance
Director of Thames Water Authority in
1987. He is a member of the
Charities Committee.

Non-Executive Directors

Sir Christopher Leaver GBE (59)
Vice Chairman

Appointed to the Board of Thames
Water Autherity in 1983, He was
Chairman of Thames Water Pic from
May 1893 to March 1994. Chairman
of Remuneration and Charities
Commitiees, and 8 member ¢f
Nomination and Environmental
Review Committees. He is a Director
of Unicnamerica Holdings Plc,
Pathfinder Properties Plc and
Drayhawk Limited.

Roger Carr (50)

Appointed o the Board of Thames
Water PIc in November 1294.
Mernber of the Audit, Nomination
and Remuneration Commitiees.

He is Chief Executive of Williams
Holdings PLC, a Director of Bass Plc,
Newmond Plc and Landau Forte
College, and a member of the CBI
Economic Affairs Committee.

Tony Hobson {49)

Appointed to the Board of Thames

Water Plc in Novernber 1994. He is |
Group Cirector (Finance) of Legal &

General Group Pic. Member of Audit,
Remuneration and Share Dealing

Committees.

John Thomson (69)

Appcinted to the Board of Thames
Water Authority in 1984. Chairman
of Audit Committee and member
of Nomination and Remuneration
Committees, He is Chairman

of Compass Group PLC, Vice
Chairman cf J Bibby & Sons plc,
and a Director of Wellington
Underwriting plc.

John Worlidge (69}

Appointed to the Board of Thames
Water Authority in 1988. Chairman
of Environmental Review Committea
and member of the Remuneration
Committee. Trustee Director of the
Thames Water Pension Scheme.

David Clementi (48)

Appointed to the Board of Thames
Water Pic in January 1987. He is
Vice Chairman of Kleinwort
Benson Group Plc. Member

of the Remuneration and

Audit Committees.

Company Secretary

David Badcock {52)

Appointed Secretary and Legal
Director to Thames Water Plc in
October 1995, Joined Thames Water
Autharity as Secretary in 1986, and
was appointed Secretary and Legal
Director, Thames Water Utilities
Limited in 1988.
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Directors’ report

The Directors preser: their eighth Annual Report together with
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 March 1297.

Principal Activities

The main activilies ¢’ Thames Water Plc and its suksidiaries

{the Group) ae:

- water supoly serv ces, involving the abstraction of water. its
treatrment and distibution to customers’ premises

- sewerage services, involving the collection. treatment and
disposal ¢f sewags from customers’ premises, together
with the conveyance and treatment of surface water

- international wate” and wastewater process design and
opéerationsl and ranagement contracts

- the develcpment and manufacture of products for the
treatment of wate- and wastewater

- waste managemsant and environmental services

- other trading activities inciuding insurance and property
developmant.

A list of the principal subsidiary undertakings appears on pages
46 and 47, Destails of the progress made and information
relating to the various activities of the Group during the vear
and plans for the future are given in the Managing Director's
operating review on pages 4 to 10,

Profits and Dividends

The Group profit for the year attributable to shareholders was
£320.4m (1295/96 £203.5m). A review of the year's
performance is included in the financial review on pages

12 and 13.

The Directors recomrmend payment of a final dividend of
23.2p per share, mzaxing a total for the year of 34.4p
amounting t¢ £132m,

Employees

Local arrangements have continued for managers to meet
employees and their representatives to discuss matters of
mutual interest and concern. There are employees as Member
Trustees for the thres major pension schemes operated by
the Group.

Employees had ancther opportunity to join or extend their
interest in the Company Sharesave Scheme. Awards were
made to the three Executive Directors under the Long Term
Restricted Share Plan, approved by Sharehalders in July 1996
(see page 20). An appropriation of shares was made to
employees under the Thames Water Profit Sharing Scheme in
respect of the year ended 31 March 1896, It is intended that a
further appropriation will be made in respect of the year ended
31 March 1997,

Direct communication with employees was continued
through the Company newspaper, videos, conferences
and team briefings.

e,
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Health and Safety

Itis the policy throughout the Group to ensure that health and
safety standards are maintained at a high level in order to
protect both cur employees and members of the public. This
policy is implemented by the integrated health and safety team
consisting of specialists from within the Group and led by the
health and safety manager.

Employment of the Disabled

The Group recognises its responsibility for the employment,
training, career development and promaotion of disabled
persons. Every effort is made to continue to employ those
who become disabled while working for the Group.

Capital
Ordinary shareholders were allotted 3,339,105 ordinary shares
following the offer of a scrip dividend.

During the year 1,884.383 ordinary shares were issued to
holders on the exercise of their options under the Company's
Sharesave Scheme.

Options for 503,350 ordinary shares were exercised during the
year under the Company's Executive Share Option Scheme.
Under the Company's Profit Sharing Scheme for employees,
224,022 ordinary shares were issued.

- Changes in capital arising from the repurchase by the

Cornpary of 10% of its issued share capital, and the conversion
of bonds to shares by bond holders are outlined on page 12.
The Company repurchased 10% of its issued share capital to
return value to sharehclders.

Directors

The names of the present Directors of the Company are
shown on page 14. All the Directors served on the Board
throughout the financial year, with the exception of David
Clementi who was appointed on 1 January 1997. In accordance
with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, he will
retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and offer
himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 105, Sir Christopher Leaver, David
Luffrum and Bill Harper will retire at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and. being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election. John Worlidge and John Thornson will also retire
at the 1997 Annual General Meeting.

David Luffrurm and Bill Harper, as Executive Directors, have
service contracts with the Company, subject to termination

by one year's notice. in cormmon with the other non-Executive
Directors, Sir Christopher Leaver and David Clementi do not
have service contracts with the Cormpany.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares

The beneficial interests of Directors and their families in shares
in the Company at the beginning and end of the year are
shown in the tables on pages 20 and 34 for Executive
Directors and non-Executive Directors respactively. No Director
had any non-beneficial interest in the shares of the Company.
There were ro changes in the Directors’ registerad interests in
the shares of the Company during the period from 1 April 1297
to 20 June 1997. None of the Directors had any beneficial
interests in the shares of any subsidiary company.

Significant Contracts

During the period under review, there were no significant
coniracts between the Company and any of the Directors
other than service contracts with the Executive Directors.

Substantial Shareholdings

At 20 June 1987. the Directors had been advised of notifiable
interests in the issued ordinary share capital of 9.1% by Franklin
Resources, Inc. and its affiiates, 3.4% by The Capital Group
Companies, Inc., 3.4% by FINAXA S.A., AXA S.A. and their
subsidiaries, and 3.0% by the Standard Life Group.

The Directors consider that the close cormpany provisions
of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 do not apply
to the Company. There has been no change in this respect
since the end of the financial year.

Research and Development

The Group is committed to a programme of research and
development activities, Pages 6 and 7 of the operating review
highlight the main areas where research activity is undertaken.

Environment

The Directors continue to regard care for the environment as
one of the fundamental guiding principles of Tharmes Water.
The Environmental Review Committee, whose report is on
page 21, has continued its work of reviewing the Group's
environmental strategy, performance and reporting systems.

Policy on Payment of Suppliers

Tharnes Water actively supports a number of initiatives to
promote a prompt payment culture, including those proposed
by the Construction Round Table, the CBi and the recent draft
proposals for a new British Standard. The implermentation of
these principles in the Company's arrangements with its
suppliers is managed by its procurement subsidiary CONNECT
2020, whilst arrangements with its contractors are managed
through the Engineering Department. All payments to suppliers,
service providers and contractors are made on the basis of
mutually agreed terms and conditions which are established

in aclvance of purchases.

The amount due to trade creditors at 31 March 1927
represented 41 days' purchases received from those creditors.

Political and Charitable Donations

Charitable donations amounting to £117.000 were made during
the year. No donations were made for any political purposes
during the year.

Auditors

A Resolution to re-appoint Coopers and Lybrand as the
Company's Auditors and to authorise the Directors to
determine their remuneration wil be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting on 28 July 1997.

Special Business

In addition to the Crdinary Business to be transacted at the
1997 Annual General Meeting, a number of items of Special
Business will be proposed. Further details of these items,
together with explanatory notes, will be found in the circutar
accompanying this Report and Accounts. They are:

- a Resolution renewing the power granted to Direciors in
July 1996 to issue equity securities for cash other than
pro rata to ordinary shareholders

- a Resolution authorising the Company to make market

purchases of up to 10% of the Company’s issued
share capital, if appropriate,

By Order of the Board
&A gﬂdmh

David Badcock, Company Secretary
20 June 1997

i Swans on the river at Walton-on-Thames
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Corporate governance

The Directors are pleased to confirm that throughout the year
the Company has complied fuily with all the provisions of the
Cadbury Cormittee’s Code of Best Practice. The Report of
the Audit Committee on page 22 coutlines the Group's system
of internal cortrol, for which the Board of Directors has overalt
responsibility. The Directors’ statement on going concem
appears on £zge 13. The Auditors’ report on corporate
governance matters is set ouf below.

The Board and Board Committees

At the close ¢f the year under review, the Board comprised the
full-time Execative Chairman, Sir Robert Clarke. three Executive
Directors, inciuding Mr W J Alexander as Managing Director,
and six non-Executive Directors.

The full Boarc meets monthly and monitors executive
managemen: and the performance of the major business
units across the Group. There is a formal schedule of matters
reserved for cecision by the Board, which includes overall
strategy, business planning, acquisitions and disposals, and
approval of major projects.

The work of tne Board is supported by the following
Committees. sach of which have formal terms of reference.
Mernbership of the Committees includes the following
Directors:

Audit Committee

John Thomson (Chairman), Tony Hobson, Roger Carr and
David Clernenti. The Audit Committee mests six times a

year and assists the Board in its responsibility to ensure that
appropriate accounting and financial policies and procedures
are implemented, that systems of internal conirol and internal
and external audit are in place, and that auditors’
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reccmmendations are considered and appropriate actions
taken. The Committee aiso recommends the audit fee to the
Board. The report of the Committee is on page 22.

Remuneration Committee

Sir Christopher Leaver (Chairman), Roger Carr, David Clementi,
Tony Hobson, John Thomson and John Woerlidge. The
Remuneration Committee determines the service contracts,
salaries and other remuneration of the Executive Directors.
The Committee's report is on page 18.

Environmental Review Committee

John Worlidge (Chairman), Sir Christopher Leaver and

Bill Harper. The Envirenimental Review Committes, whose
report is on page 21, reviews the Company's environrmental
strategy, performance and reporting systems.

Share Dealing Committee

8ir Robert Clarke (Chairman) and Tony Habson. The Share
Dealing Committee considers all applications to deal in shares
by Directors and senior employees s0 as to meet the
reguirements of law and of the London Stock Exchange.

Charities Committee

Sir Christopher Leaver (Chairman) and David Luffrum. The
Charities Committee makes charitable donations from a
budget allocated by the Board, considers community support

- activities and encourages charitable fund raising by employees.

Nomination Committee

Sir Robert Clarke (Chairman), Sir Christopher Leaver, Roger
Carr and John Thomson. The Nomination Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on Board membership and
top management succession,

Report of the Auditors to Thames Water Plc on

Corporate governance matters

In addition t¢ our audit of the financial statements, we have
reviewed the Directors' statements on corporate governance
matters above and internal financial control on page 22
conceming the Company's compliance with the paragraphs of
the Cadbury Code of Best Practice specified for our review by
the Londion Stock Exchange and their adoption of the going
concern bags in preparing the financial statements. The
objective of our review is to draw attention to non-compliance
with Listing Rules 12.43()) and 12.43(v). '

Basis of Opinion

We carried ot our review in accordance with guidance issued
by the Auditing Practices Board. That guidance does not
require us to perform the additional work necessary to, and we
do not, express any opinion on the effectiveness of either the
Group's system of internal financial control or its corporate
governance procedures, nor on the ability of the Company or
Group to continue in operational existence.

Opinion

With respect to the Directors' staternents on internal financial
control on page 22, and going concern on page 13, in our
opinion the Directors have provided the disclosures required by
the Uisting Rules referred to above and such statements are
not inconsistent with the information of which we are aware
from our audit work on the financial statements.

Based on enguiry of certain Directors and officers of the
Company, and examination of relevant documents, in our
opinion the Directors’ statement above appropriately reflects
the Company’s compliance with the other aspects of the
Code specjiied for our review by Listing Rule 12.43().

Coopers & kytrand
Chartered Accountants
London 20 June 1997
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Report of the Remuneration Committee by Sir Christopher Leaver

Composition and Role

The Rermuneraton Committee, which | chair, comprises the
non-Executive Directors of the Board. The Committee
members who sarved during the year ending 31 March 1997
were as follows:

Sir Chrigzopher Leaver (Chairman), Roger Carr, David Clementi
{from 1 vanuary 1997}, Tony Hobson, John Thomson,
John Weoridge.

The Cormmittee’'s primary role is to determine the contracts of
service. salaries and other remuneration of the Executive
Directors. It does not consider the fees payable to the non-
Executive Direciors which are determined every two years by
the Executive Chaiman and Executive Directors (see note 5
{o the Accounts on page 34).

Compliance

The Rermuneration Committee can confirm that the Company
has complied fully with Section A of the Best Practice
Provisions {annaxed to the Stock Exchange Listing Rules) and
further confirms that the Committee has taken into account the
provisions of Section B of the Best Practice Provisions in
framing s remuneration policy.

On 13 May 1897. the Stock Exchange announced new Listing
Rules concerming the disclosure of directors' pension benefits
effective for company accounts ending on or after 1 July 1997,
Although these provisions do not take effect for the year
under consideration, the Company has decided 1o adopt
them earty.

Remuneration of Executive Directors

The Remuneration Committee's objective is o ensure that the
remuneration packages offered are competitive and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate top guality Executive Directors in
the overall interests of shareholders and customers. The
packages are reviewed every year to ensure that they continue
to be supportive of the Company's business cbjectives and the
creation of shareholder value through comparison with similar
jobs in other companies.

The Company uses the Hay method of job evaluation to
enable these comparisons to be made and the evaluation
process takes into account not orly the size of companies
but also their diversity, cormnplexity and intermational presence.
I addition, we take particular note of the comparative
position of other companies in our own sector and in the
utility sector generally.

Basic Salary

Each July, the basic salary for each Executive Director is
reviewed using data drawn from the comparator groups. The
salaries of the Chairman and the Managing Director were not
reviewed in July 1986 having been previcusly determined in
April 1996 when Sir Robert Clarke became full time Executive
Chairman and Mr Alexander became Managing Director. The
Commitiee reviewed the salary levels for these two positions
and in the light of the cormparative data, the Chairman’s salary
was determined at £233,666 and the salary of Mr Alexander
determined at £185,000, both effective from 1 Aprit 1996.

At the July 1996 review, the salaries of Mr Luffrum and

Mr Harper were increased by 3.4% and 7.3% respectively.
The increases took account of performance and the prevailing
market inforrmation on pay levels.

Annual Bonus

In addition to their basic salary, the Executive Directors are
eligible for an annual non-pensionable bonus under the terms
of the annual cash/share bonus plan which was approved by
shareholders in July 19986. The targets for the bonus plan are
set by the Remuneration Committee and are based on
challenging performance criteria comprising both financiat and
customer senvice measurement to encourage superior
performance. For 1996/97, bonus awards of 27% of basic
salary have been made following a year of excellent profit
performance and improving customer service performance.
Two-thirds of the bonus is awarded in cash and will be paid in
July 1997, Details appear on page 19. One-third of the bonus
will be awarded in conditional rights to shares.

The Chairmnan does not participate in the annual cash/share
bonus plan.

Long-Term Incentives

As part of the Company's response to the Greenbury Report,
a new Long-Term Restricted Share Plan for Executive Directors
was approved by shareholders in July 1996. The plan replaces
the Executive Share Opticn Scheme and awards are
non-pensionable.

Performance is measured by reference to total shareholder
return (TSR) over a four-year period against a comparator
group comprising eight water and sewerage companies.

At the time the plan was approved by shareholders, there were
nine water and sewerage companies. The reduction to eight
has been recognised by reducing the awards for fourth and
fifth position in the comparator group.

The maximum award for the first year was set by the
Remuneration Committee at 20% of basic salary and details of
the first awards made under the scheme are given on page 20.
The maximum award is payable should the Company achieve
first or second place in the comparative rankings. Achievement
of third and fourth place would qualify for ocne-half and one-
quarter of the award respectively. No award will be made for
fifth place or below.

The Chairman does not participate in the Long-Term Restricted
Share Plan.

Pensions

The Company's policy is to offer Executive Directors and Senior
Executives membership of the Senior Executive Pension
Schemaea. This scheme provides a ‘top up' arrangerment for
benefits that accrue through membership of the contributory
Thames Water Pension Scheme.

The Senior Executive Pension Scheme is a funded, inland
Revenue approved, final salary, occupational pension scheme
which together with the contributory scheme provides:

i anormal pension age of 80;



i an overall pension at normal pension age of two-thirds
of final pensionabie salary. subject to the completion of
20 years’ pensionable service;

i life cover of four times pensioriable salary,

iv  pensions payable in the event of ill health; and

vV Spouse's pensicn on death.

All of the pension scheme benefits are subject to Inland
Revenue limits. Where benefit entitlernents are restricted

by Inland Revenue rules, then supplementary unfunded
arrangements are in place. Such arangements exist for

Mr Alexander and details of this and the pension arrangements
for all Executive Directors are given below.

Other Benefits

Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Company's
arrangements for executive benefits which include the
provision of a fully expensed car, membership of private
medical and insurance schemes, a financial advisory service
and the reimbursement of business telephone charges.

No changes were made to the structure of other benefits but
the value of car benefits was increased in line with the scales
issued by the Inland Reverue.

Service Contracts

From April 1998, the Chairman's service contract continues
from year to year until he reaches the age of 70, subject to
12 months' notice by the Company.

In May 1296, the Executive Directors agreed to a further
reduction in notice period from twe years to one year. This
followed an agreed reduction from three vears to two

in 1994/95. In the event of termination without notice, a
payment of compensation will be mads representing one
year's remuneration and benefits.

Full getails of the remuneration, pension arrangerments and the
interests in shares of the Executive Directors in 1996/97,

compared with the previcus year's figures, are shown
immediately following this report.

f
§
Sir Christopher Leaver, Committee Chairman

Directors’ Remuneration - Year ended 31 March 1997
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Pension Arrangements

All Executive Birectors, except Sir Robert Clarke, are members
of the Thames Water Pension Scheme (the ‘main’ Scheme)
and the Senior Executive Pension Scheme. The disclosure
below is based upon the accrued benefits method and the
amounts shown represent the annual pension accrued within
the two schemes and payable on retirement at aged 60 based
upon each Director's pensionable service to date, current
pensionable salary and any benefits transferred in from
previous emplovers.

Directors’ Increase in - Accumidated
CoONALUTIONS accrued  total accrued
inyear to pansion pension at
21897 during the 31.3.97

Pensionslie year to

Name of Age at seneie at 31.2.97
Director 3387 31 3.97 £000 £000 jaeisle]
W J Alexander 50 7 years 5 2 11
W R Harper 53 35vyears 3 4 61
D J Luffrum 52 34vyears 5 4 88

Notes

1 The pension entitliement shown is that which would be paid annualy on
retirement based on pensionable senise to 31 March 1997.

2 The contributicns shown are those paid by the Directors under the terms of the
main Scheme in the year to 31 March 1897,

3 The increase in accrued pension during the year to 31 March 1997 excludes any
increase for inflation.

4 Sir Robert Clarke has an executive pension plan, contributions (£18,000 per
annumj to which are through a salary sacrifice arrangement. The plan assumes a
rormal retirement age of 7C years. The benefits at age 70 will be those that can
be provided from the value of the fund at the time.

5 Mr Alexander is entitled to a pension on retirement at age 60 of 58% of his
pensicnalble salary in the last fiscal year prior to retirement less benefits in his
previous employer's pension schemes. This commitment will be met by &
combination of funded pensions through the main Scheme and the Senior
Executive Pengion Schemne and an unfunded arrangement through an annual
charge to the profit and loss account. For the year to 31 March 1997, this
amounted to £111,000 (1896; £25,000;. the increase resulting from
Mr Alexander's salary revision following his apgpointrent as Managing Director
on 1 April 1996. The total provision at 31 March 1997 was £205,000.

&  Mr Harper and Mr Luffrum are entitled (o a pension on retirement at age 80 of
two-thirds of pensionable salary in the last fiscal year prior to retirerment, In both
cases, the pensions will be funded from the main Scheme,

7 Members of the main Scheme have the option to pay Additional Voluntary
Contributions; neither the contributions nor the resutting benefits are included
in the above table.

8 Spouses' pensions following death in retirement, are payable equal to 50% of
the Directors’ pensions before the exercise of any cash option,

9 Pension increases are pre-funded in kne with inflation.

Salary Annual Qther 1997 Salary Annual Cther 1996

and fees bonus benefits Total and fees bonus benefits Total

Executive Directurs 2000 £000 £000 £000 2000 £000 £000 £0ODO
Sir Robert Clarke 234 - 13 247 144 - 7 151
W J Alexander 185 a3 ) 226 144 g 8 161
W R Harper 108 19 10 137 102 - 10 112
O J Luffrum 149 26 =} 184 142 - 9 151
Former Director {note 1) - - 15 15 250 - 14 264
Totals 676 78 55 809 782 9 48 839

Notes

1 Inthe year ended 31 March 1997, the Company made an unfunded pension payment of £14,607 (1986: Nil) to Mr Hoffman (& former Director).
2 Details of the fees paid to non-Executive Directors are shown on rage 34 (note 5 1o the accounts},
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Directors’ Interests in Shares
Ordinary Shares and Executive Share Options

Ordinary Shares Executive Share Opticns
31.3.98 31.3.97 1996 1997 Notiorat Exercise Date when Expiry
Nurnber Number Number Number value price exercisable date
£00C
Sir Robert Clarke 4,955 5,306 - - - - - -
W J Alexander 14,588 14,682 18,000 18,000 58.0 347p 2.7.94 July 2001
31,000 31,000 79.7 418p 24.6.95 June 2002
22,000 22,000 48.8 453p 8.12.97 Dec 2004
W R Harper 11,300 1,788 22,000 22,000 72.2 347p 2.7.94 July 2001
11,000 11,000 351 356p 15.11.24 Nov 2001
9,0C0 9,000 20.0 453p 812.97 Dec 2004
D J Luffrum 20,656 36,643 6,000 - - 283p
25,000 - - 347py Exercised
13,000 - - 356p 21.3.97
18,000 18,000 40.0 453p 8.12.97 Dec 2004

Notes

1 Following the adostion of the Long-Term Restricted Share Plan at the 1996 AGM, no further share options will be granted to Executive Directors under the Executive

Share Oction Scheme.

2 (i} No executive share options granted to Executive Directors lapsed during the vear;
M On 2 March 1997, Mr Luffrum exercised options under the Executive Share Option Scheme on 44,000 shares. 28,020 shares were sold to cover the subscription
cos: of the exarcise of option and the payment of tax on the capital gain (£138.630). The mid-rmarket price on the date of exercise was B56p.

3  Under the Thames Water Sharesave Scheme, which is available to Directors and all employees, Sir Robert Clarke had 4,097 options at 31 March 1997 (1896 4,087).
The exe-sise price of these options is 421p. Mr Luffrum had 2,205 options at 31 Mareh 1997 (1996: Nil) and the exarcise price of these opticnsis 442p.

4 The notional value of the executive share options is based on the difference between the market price of the Compary’s shares at the close of business on 13 June 1987

(675p) a~d the exercise price. The share price ranged from 531.5p to 694.5p dim‘ng the year.

Long-Term Restricted Share Plan (1986-2000)

Number

of shares Eartiest

Date of {maximur) vesting

award {nota 1) date

W J Alexander 2886 5,941 1.4.2000

W R Harper 2.8.86 4,127 1.4.2000

G J Luffrum 2.8.96 5628 1.4.2000
Notes

1 The nur~oer of shares that will vest under the long-term plan is deterrmined by the Company's position in the rankings, based upon comparative total shareholder retum
over the “our-year period ending 31 March 2000. Should the Company rank below fourth place then rno shares will vest and the Cirectors’ interest in the shares will lapse.
The prozartion of shares to vest for fourth place and above is graduated as follows:

Ranrking
4th - 25% of the shares
3rd - 50% of the shares

1st/2nd - 100% of the shares
2 The marst value of the shares was 675p at 13 June 1997
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Report of the Environmental Review Committee by John Worlidge

The Environmantal Raview Committee, comprising

Sir Christopher Leaver, Bill Harper and myseif, reviews the
Company's environr-antal strategy, performance and reporting
systems. In July 1987 we are publishing cur fifth Environmental
Review. This sets ourt the main envirornmental impacts of the
business, our envirormental performance over the last 12
months and cur progress against targets. The data in the
report has bean extenally verified.

Some key aspects of the Company's performance are
summarised below:

Water Resources

The exceptionally dry conditions have been the dominant issue
for the industry. Desoite having only 70% of average rainfall last
year, we were able to supply water {0 our customers without
imposing restrictions. During such dry pericds, major concerns
are expressed abour the environmental impact of abstractions.
Our objective is to strike the right balance between such
concerns and meeting customer needs for water.

Qur Water Efficiency Plan, highly commended by Ofwat, was
published in March. This tackles the key demand management
measures. Leakage is our top priority. We are committed to
halving mains leakags by the year 2000 and annual targets
have been agreed with Cfwat. With over 800 staff involved in
leakage control, we met our target at the end of March and
continue to make good progress. We are instaling domestic
meters free of chargs upon request and are pressing ahead in
fitting meters into homes with high non-essential use. More
than 120,000 customers have requested our water efficiency
pack which sets out how people can use water wisely and
includes a free "Hippo' water saving device.

Drinking Water Quality

The quality of our drinking water improved again this year, with
99.5% of tests mesting regulatory standards - our highest ever
achievement.

We were prosecuted in July for an incident that happened in
1994 where we supplied customers with water that was
discoloured by iron deposits. Although there was no risk to
health, we know that this was unacceptable. A full internal
review was carried out and extensive measures taken to guard
against this type of incident.

Wastewater Management

We maintained our excellent record. 99% of customers were
served by sewage treatment works complying with the
‘look-up' tables in the Environment Agency’s consents. Our
aim is to ensure that all works are fully compliant. Through
continuing high investment levels, we will further enhance river
quality which has been acclaimed by the Environment Agency.
Regretiably, we were prosecuted three times for causing
pollution as a result of operational incidents.

- - o
@r‘) RECIPIENT OF A The s
A7/ NATIONAL COMMENDATION en Mother’s
o AWARD 1996 Birthday Awards

We have actively continued our ‘Bag it and Bin it' campaign,
educating pecple in the environmental problems associated
with disposing of household wastes like fats, cotton buds and
nappies down the drain. We received & commendation in the
PR Week awards for communicating this message effectively.

Nature Conservation and Access

We have progressed works improvernents including landscape
enhancements, odour control, effuent quality and energy
efficiency. Our Mogden sewage treatment works was
commended in the Business Commitrnent to the

Environment Awards.

Our Kempton Park Nature Reserve saw the first recorded
successful breeding of avocets in inland Britain. These are rare
winter visitors to Britain which are usually confined to the coast.
We also completed 41 habitat enhancement schemes this year
(38 with local partrers) improving nature conservation and
public access.

Environmental Stewardship

Erwvironmental awards waon this year included a national
commendation in the Tidy Britain Group’s 1296 Queen Mother's
Birthday Awards for our waste reduction initiatives and work on
the ThamesClean project. We continue to support several
community initiatives such as the Going for Green project with
the London Borough of Merton and Global Action Plan.

We have progressed our vision of sustainable develcpment
and implications for the water industry. As part of this, we have
contributed {o a number of local authority plans and hosted a
technical seminar attended by more than 50 local authorities.

Looking forward, cimate change appears inevitable. Qur
conservation measures will not suffice alone. We are, therefore,
planning for a major sustainable reservoir resource to meet the
region's needs in the next century.

John Worlidge, Committee Chairman

1 Thames Water sponsors the carp
tank at London Zoo
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Report of the Audit Committee by John Thomson

The Audit Committee’s role is to assist the Board in carrying
out its responsibifities relating to internal control, external and
internal audit, accounting and external reporting. Any non-
Executive Board member may-attend the Committee’s
meetings. Four non-Executive Directors, including myself as
Chairman. compise the core membership.

Each meeting of the Committee had an agenda linked to
events in the Company’s financial calendar.

In September 1998, we reviewed the report by the Company’s
extermal auditors (Coopers & Lybrand) on matters arising from
their year-end audit of the accounts. Our review included
congideration of the adeguacy of management responses to
the extemal auditors’ recommendations and consequent
actions pianned.

A further meeting in October considered the Interim results
prior to thair release.

At the mesting in January 1997, the extemal auditors’ planned
approach and fee proposal for the audit of the accounts for
1996/97 was reviewed. We also satisfied ourselves that

Internal financial controt

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the Group's
systern of internal financial control and has reviewed its
effectiveneass. The key features of the internal financial control
system that has operated throughout the year are described
under the following headings.

Control Environment

The Board has in place an organisational structure with clearly
defined lines of authority and accountability. This is supported
by a Comecrate Policies and Procedures manual which is
reviewed and updated annually. The manual containg, inter afia,
sections setting out policies and procedures to be followed in
business planning, capital expenditure approval, sales tenders,
treasury management, insurance and risk management.

Identification and Evaluation of Risks and Control Objectives

Risk areas are reviewed on a regular basis by executive
management and key risks and risk management programmes
are subject to consideration by the Board.

Information and Communication

The Group operates a comprehensive annual budget and
financial reporting system which compares profits and cash
performance with budget on a monthly basis. Revised
forecasts for the year are prepared quarterly. At each monthly
meeting, the Board reviews the performance of the major
business units across the Group.

appropriate progress was being made by management to
deal with matters raised in both the intemal and external audit
reports. An updated business ethics policy was agreed for
dissemination throughout the Group.

In April 1997, we considered the principal accounting policies to
be adopted in closing the financial accounts for 1996/97. We
reviewed a report on the work of the internal audit department
for that year and agreed the department’s forward work
programme for 1987/98. We considered a report detailing the
results of the internal control self-certification questionnaires as
completed by each business unit. We also agreed changes to
the Group's corporate policies and procedures manual.

In May and June, the Committee met on two occasions
specifically related to the release of the financial results
for 1996/97.

JM )/Lb(—'*»u-*—- .

John Thomson, Committee Chairman

Control Procedures

There are comprehensive policies and procedures in place
which cover authorisation, segregation of duties, recording
of data and physical security.

Manitoring and Corrective Action

All business units complete seif-certification questionnaires to
confim compliance with specified standards of internal financial
control. These are reviewed annually by the Audit Committee.

The Group has an established intemal audit department which
carries out reviews of business and control procedures as part
of a broadly based programme of work. This intermnal audit
programme is constructed using risk assessrment techniques
to develop an appropriate cycle of activity reviews having
regard to the key aspects of the business.

The plans and resuits of internal audit activities are reviewed by
the Audit Committee on a regular basis. The Committee also
reviews reports concermning the overall system of intermnal
financial control recognising that any system of internal control
can provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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Statement of the Directors’ responsibilities for the preparation of financial statements

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the profit for that year. In preparing the financial statements
the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial staterments

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
uniess it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting

records which disclose. with reasonable accuracy at any time,
the financial position of the Group and to enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the

Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and cother irregularities.

By Order of the Beoard

s Bt

David Badcock, Company Secretary
20 June 1997

Report of the Auditors to the members of Thames Water Plc

We have audited the financial statements on pages 24 to 47.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As described above, the Company’s Directors are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements. It is our responsibility
to forrm an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those
statements and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the Directors in preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
iregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements.

Opinicn

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at

31 March 1997 and of the profit, total recegnised gains and
cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985,

—

Coopers & Lybrand

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

20 June 1997
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Consolidated profit and loss account

Year ending 31 Marcs

Turnover
Operating costs

Cther operating income

Operating profit .

Other non-operating exceptional items:

{Loss)/profit on sale/closure of discontinuing
operations

Less utilisation o7 1996 provision

Provision for lossas on the sale/closure of
operations to be discontinued

Profit on ordinary aétivities before interest and taxation
Interest
Nor-recurring premium on the repurchase

of Convertible Bonds

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial year
Dividends on equity shares

Retained profit transferred to reserves

Earnings per ordinary share

Adjusted earnings per ordinary share

1997 1997 1086 1996
{Restated - see note 6)
Note £m £m £m em
3 1,287.4 1,183.6
4 (852.0) ﬁ)
428.4 365.7
6 12.3 10.4
440.7 37641
2
(51.0) 2.2
51.0 - - 2.2
- (97.2)
440.7 2814
7 (56.7) {52.4)
20 {12.2) -
371.8 2287
8 {51.4) {25.2)
24 3204 203.5
11 {(132.0) (114.2)
188.4 89.3
12 82.8p 50.7p
12 85.5p 74.3p

There is no difference between the profit on ordinary activities before taxation and the retained profit for the year stated above and

the historical cost equivalents.

Statement of recognised gains and losses

Year ending 31 Marcn

Profit for the financial year
Currency translation differences
Advance corporation tax on the repurchase of shares

Total recognised gains for the financial year

1957 1996
£m £m
320.4 203.5
5.6 (1.2}
{44.9) -
2811 202.3
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‘Consolidated and Company balance sheets

Group Company
1997 1998 1097 1686
At 31 March . Note £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assats 13 3,387.9 3.123.4 0.7 0.2
Investrments 14 34.3 17.5 a55.6 938.1
3,422.2 3.140.¢ 956.3 838.3
Current assets
Stocks and work in progress 15 25.3 308 - -
Debtors 16 306.4 284.0 104.6 146.7
Investments 17 134.1 218.0 33.3 114.2
Cash at bank and in hand 68.7 57.6 221 33.2
534.5 598.4 160.0 294.1
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 18 (864.7) (590.7) (410.8) (205.4)
Net current (liabilities)/assets {330.2) 8.7 {250.8) 88.7
Total assets less current liabilities 3,092.0 3,149.6 705.5 1,027.0
Creditors: amounts faling due after more than one year i9 {839.5) (773.6) {102.2) (118.7)
Convertible debt 20 - (81.8) - (81.8)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 22 {87.0) (123.9) {0.1) (1.5}
Net assets 2,165.5 2170.3 603.2 8250
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 23/24 379.4 404.0 379.4 404.0
Share premium 24 48.6 8.2 48.6 8.2
Capital redemption reserve 24 4.4 - 41.4 -
Profit and loss account 24 1,696.1 1,75841 133.8 412.8
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,165.5 2,170.3 603.2 825.0

The notes on pages 28 to 47 form part of these accounts.

The accounts were approved by the Board on 20 June 1997.

Sir Robert Clarke, Chairman W
D J Luffrum, Finance and Planning Director 5
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Year endec 31 March

Cash flow from operating activities {note a)
Returns on investment and servicing of finance
Interest received

Interest paid

Premium on repurchase of convertible bonds
Interest eizment of finance lease rental payments

Net cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance

Taxation

UK corporation tax paid

Advance corporation tax on the purchase of shares
Qverseas tax paid

Net cash outflow from taxation

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital contributions received

Sale of tangible fixed assets

Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment
Acquisitions and disposals

Purchase of fixed asset investments

Sale of businesses {note b)

Net cash {outflow)/inflow from acquisitions and disposals
Equity dividends paid

Cash (outflow}/inflow before use of liquid resources and financing

Management of liquid resources

Financing

fssue of shares

Purchase of own shares

Cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing
Other

Increase in cash in period

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

ar

Increase in cash in period

Cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing:
- loans due within one year

- loans due after more than one year

~ capital repayment of finance leases

- purchase of convertible bonds

Cash inflow from decrease in liquid resources

Other

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows
Other non-cash movements:

= new finance leases

- conversion of convertible bonds

Foreign exchange translation differences

Net debt at 1 April
Net debt at 31 March

+
e

1997 1997 1996 19896
£m £m £m £m
562.3 444.0
17.1 18.6
{55.6) {55.8)
(12.2) -
{13.4) (12.8)
(64.1) (50.0)
(26.3) (21.6)
(44.9) -
(3.4) (0.6)
(74.6) (22.2)
(365.5) (287.0)
20.3 24.8
3.0 3.8
(333.2) (258.6)
{16.1) (14.8)
(17.7) 187
{33.9) 39
_ teay . L202)
{46.6) 26.9
82.4 (3i.3)
7.8 3.5
(226.2) -
185,32 209
- (0.4)
{33.1) 24.0
27 19.6
1997 1996
fm £m
2.7 19.6
(184.4) {36.8)
(38.1) 10.8
1.6 49
35.6 -
(82.4) 31.3
- (0.4)
{265.0) 20,6
(33.8) (52.8)
46,2 -
45 -
{248.1) (30.2)
(641.4) (611.2)
(889.5) (641.4)
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‘Notes 10 the cash flow statement

a Reconciliation of operating profit te operating cash flow
Operating profit
Depreciazon
Decrease (increase) in stocks
increase in debtors
Increase in creditors
{Decreasa)/increase in long-term provisions
Other

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Thames Water 27

1887 1996
(Restated -
see note 6)
£m £m
440.7 3761
108.1 101.0
15.7 (6.1)
{45.4) (37.5)
60.1 12.2
(16.3) 7.4
(0.6) (9.1)
562.3 444.0

Of the net cash inflow from operating activities, £10.5m is in respect of cash outflows from nen-operating exceptional iterms.

b Sale of businesses

Tangible fixed assets
Stocks

Debtors

Creditors

Loss on disposal
Satisfied by bank loans

The subsidiary undertakings sold during the year utiised £7.3m of the Group’s operating cash flows, received £0.1m
in respect of net returns on investments and senvicing of finance and paid £0.1min respect of capital expenditure.

1997
£m
1.2
(1.2)
20.7
(24.5)

(3.8)
(13.9)

{17.7)

at 't Apri Cash flow Other Exchange at 31 March
1996 non-cash movements 1997
movements

¢ Analysis of net debt £m £m £m £m £m
Cash in hand 57.6 1.1 - - 68.7
Bank overdraft {40.7) (8.4) - - {49.1)
Net cash 6.9 27 - - 19.6
Loans due within one year (65.0) (184.4) - - {249.4)
Loans due after more than one year (510.3) (38.1) - 6.0 (542.4)
Convertible bonds (81.8) 35.6 46.2 - -
Finance leases (212.2) 1.8 (33.8) - (251.9)
Liquid resources 218.0 82.4) - (1.5) 1341
(841.4) (265.0) 12.4 4.5 (889.5)

The Group includes as liquid resources terrmn deposits of less than one year and fixed and floating interest rate securities.

d Major non-cash transactions

During the year the Group entered into the following non-cash transactions:

- theissue of 3.3m ordinary shares representing shareholders’ election to take shares rather than cash dividends

- the conversion by bondholders of bonds to the value of £46.2m into 10.8m ordinary shares
- finance leases amounting to £33.8m to fund capital plant, equipment and vehicles.
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Notes to the accounts

Principal accounting policies
A surmary of the more important Group accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, is set out below:
Basis of preparation The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention and with
appficable accounting standards in the UK and, except for the treatment of certain capital contributions and retranslation of
long-iarm foreign currency liabilities, with the Companies Act 1985. An explanation of these departures from the
requirsments of the Actis given in note 1(e) and (j) below. The cash flow statement has been presented in accordance with
Financial Repoarting Standard (FRS) number 1 (revised). Material transactions between the Company and related parties are
also gisclosed in accordance with FRS 8 'Related Party Disclosures’.
Basis of consolidation The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
resulis of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss account from
the date of their acquisition or up to the date of their disposal. In the event that the accounts of subsidiary undertakings are
drawn up to a year end different from that of the parent company, appropriate adjustments are made to the Group accounts
to refizct any significant transactions in the intervening period. Intra-Group sales and profits are eliminated on consolidation.
Turnover which excludes value added tax or equivalent sales tax, represents the income receivable in the ordinary course
of business for goods and services provided and, in respect of contract work in progress, the value of work carried cut.
Tangible fixed assets comprice:
- Infrastruciure assets (being mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage

ressrvoirs and sludge pipelines);
- Landfil sites; and
- Other assets (including properties, overground plant and egquipment).
i Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems. Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases in
capeacity or enhancements of the network is treated as additions. Expenditure on maintaining the operating capability of the
network in accordance with defined standards of service is charged as an operating cost and is classified as infrastructure
renewals expenditure.
No depreciation is charged on infrastructure assets because the network of systems is required t¢c be maintained in
perpetuity and therefore has no finite economic life.
i Landfill sites are included at cost less accumulated depreciation. The provision for depreciation is based upon the
average cost per cubic metre of void space consumed from the deposit of waste. Provision is made for site restoration
where it is anticipated that expenditure will be reguired at the end of the life of the site.
iii Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Freehold and long leasehold land is not depreciated. Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until they are
commissioned. Other assets are depreciated evenly over their estimated economic lives, which are principally as follows:
Buildings:

- Opsrational structures 40-80 years
- Other 30-60 years
Fixed and mebile plant 20-40 years

Vehicles, computers, fixtures and fittings 4-10 years

Capital contributions received in respect of infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of fixed assets. This is
not in accordance with Schedule 4 to the Companies Act 1985 which requires fixed asseis to be stated at their purchase
price without deduction of contributions which are accordingly accounted for as deferred income. This departure from the
requirement of the Act is, in the opinion of the Directors, necessary for the accounts 1o give a true and fair view because
infrastructure assets do not have a finite life and are not depreciated. Accordingly, related capital contributions would not be
recognised in the profit and loss account. The effect of the departure on the value of tangible fixed assets is disclosed in
rote 131,

Where material, contributions received towards the cost of other assets are accounted for as deferred income and released
to the profit and loss account over the useful lives of the assets.

Leased assets Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the lessee (finance leases), the assets are treated as if they had been purchased and the
corresponding capital cost is shown as an obligation to the lessor. Leasing payments are treated as consisting of a capital
element and finance costs, the capital element reducing the obligation to the lessor and the finance charges being written
off to the profit and loss account over the period of the lease in relation 1o the assets’ written down values. The assets are
generally depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease period.

All other leases are regarded as operating leases. Rental costs arising under operating leases are expensed in the year in
which they are incurred.
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‘Notes to the accounts

g

Investments

Fixed asset investments

I In the accounts of the Company Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provisions for permanent
diminction in value, '

i In the Group accounts Interests in associated undertakings are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group's share of the pre-tax results and attributable taxation of
the associated undertakings based on audited financial statements for the vear. In the consolidated balance sheet the
interests in associated undertakings are shown as the Group’s share of the net assets, excluding goodwil, of the
associated undertakings.

Current asset investments Investrments held as current assets are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Stocks and work in progress with the exception of long-term contract work in progress, are valued at the lower of cost and

net realisable value. Cost includes labour, materials, transport and an element of overheads.

Long-term contracts are included in the profit and loss account by recording turnover and related costs as contract activity

progressas. Profit attributable to turnover to date is included where the outcome of the contract can be foreseen with

reasonable certainty. Full provision is made for losses on unprofitable contracts.

Long-term contract work in progress is stated at net cost less foresecable losses and progress payrments received and

receivable. The amount by which turnover is in excess of payments on account is separately disclosed within debtors as

arnounts recoverable on contracts. Progress payments received in excess of costs less foreseeable losses are disclosed

in creditors. Where foresesable losses exceed net costs the excess is disclosed in provisions for liabilities and charges.

Pension costs The majority of the Group's employees belong to pensicn schemes which are funded by both employers'

and empioyees’ contributions and which are of the defined beneafit type. The pensicn cost is assessed in accordance with

the advice of an independent qualified actuary to recognise the expected cost of providing pensions on a systematic and

rational basis over the expected remaining sarvice kives of empioyees. Any difference between the cost charged and the

amounts paid by the Group is treated as a prepayment or acerual.

Foreign currencies All transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the actual rate of

exchangs ruiing on the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities, including long-term lisbilities, in foreign currencies are

ranslated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. A% exchange differences arising are dealt with in

the profit and loss account. This treatment is required by Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP) Number 20 in

order {0 give a true and fair view of the Group’s results. Compliance with SSAP 20 overrides Schedule 19 Paragraph 12 of the

Companies Act 1985 which states that only profits realised at the balance sheet date should be included in the profit and loss

account. The effect of currency retranslation is disclosed in note 4. The results of overseas subsidiary undertakings are

translated at average rates of exchange for the year. Differences arising from the translation of year-end assets and liabilities

at closing rates together with the restatement of opening balance sheets of overseas subsidiary undertakings at closing

rates are dealt with through reserves together with exchange differences on the translation of foreign currency borrowings

funding such investments.

Research and development expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which it is incurred.

Taxation The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year as adjusted for disallowable and non-taxable iterms.

Tex deferred or accelerated is accounted for in respect of all material timing differences to the extent that it is probable that

a liabiity or asset will crystafise. Provision is made at the rate which is expected to be applied when the liability or asset is

expected to crystalise. In the Company, provision is made at such rate as reflects the anticipated consideration payable or

receivable in respect of any future Group relief claims or surrenders.

Provision for insurance liabilities Provision is made for known ancd estimated liabilties arising from uninsured claims against

the Group and for claims against its wholly owned insurance company.

Goodwill arising on acquisition, being the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of subsidiary and

associated undertakings acquired, is written off against reserves in the year in which it arises, The profit or loss on disposal of

a previously acquired subsidiary or associated undertaking is deterrnined by including, where material, the attributable

amaount of purchased goodwill previously eliminated against reserves.

Interest Interest payable is written off to the profit and loss account as it is incurred except that relating to monies borrowed

to finance:

- specific long-term contracts which is included in the cost of long-term contract work in progress; interest receivable from
the temporary investment of these monies is credited to the cost of long-term contract work in progress

= the up front construction element of Build, Operate and Transfer schemes,
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Notes to the accounts

2 Continuing operations and other non-operating exceptional items

The Group provided for non-operating exceptional items of £95m in the year ended 31 March 1996 following its decision to
implement & managed withdrawal from stand atone design and construction activities and the development of only those
products and senvices businesses which are closely related to core utility strengths. The provision comprises the write down
of assets, reorganisation costs, and the write back of goodwiilll,

Good progress has been made during the year on the implementation of the strategy. On 2 October 1926, the German
consulting business and the majority of outstanding contracts in the UK and German contracting businesses were sold.

As aresult £58.6m of the provision has been utilised comprising goodwill written back (£22.9m), and losses on the
sale/closure of operations (£28.1m) together with operating losses of £7.6m inclusive of redundancy payments which are
disclosed in note 4. Although the remaining provision is considered to be adequate there are some residual issues and, as a
result. there has been no release of unutilised provisions at 31 March 1997.

Since the implementation of the withdrawal strategy was not complste at the date these accounts were approved, Financial
Reporting Standard Number 3 requires these activities to be classified as continuing. The summary below shows tumover
and proiit before interest and tax analysed between operations to be retained, and those to be discontinued.

Profit before
interest
Tumover and tax
1997 1996 1997 1996
£m £m £m £m
Operations to be retained 1,236.0 1,107.3 440.6 404.5
Sold or closed - 15.5 - (0.4)
Operations t¢ be discontinued 514 70.8 0.1 (28.0)
1,287.4 1,193.6 440.7 376.1
Other non-operating exceptional iterms - - - (95.0)
1,287.4 1193.6 440.7 281.1

Segmental analysis

The segments by class of business are: Utilities, the regulated water and wastewater business; Internationat Operations,
intermational water and wastewater operations and the marketing of technical managesial services. Products, the
development and manufacture of products for the treatment of water, wastewater and industrial process fiuids. Services,
the provision of underground, waste managerment and urban environmental services; Other activities, those carried out by
the Company in managing the Group; Insurance and Property.

With effect from 1 April 1996 the provision of waste management and urban environmental services has been separately
reported as the Services segment. Previously these activities were included in the Products and Services segment which
is now to be reported as the Products segment.

Turnover 1997 1986
tntra-segment inter-segment Third parties  Intra-segment  Inter-segment Third parties
By class of business £m £m £m £m £m £m
Utilities - 7.4 990.9 - 1.7 973.9
International operations:
~ 16 be retained 4.7 - 108.7 1.0 0.1 7.1
- 1o be discontinued 1.7 54 51.4 33 2.4 70.8
Products:
-~ 10 be retained 1.0 6.9 63.6 2.0 4.6 64.8
— sold or closed - - - - - 15.5
Services 0.2 54.9 54.6 0.9 24.9 43.7
Insurance and Property 0.2 16.4 18.2 - 15.6 17.8

Total 7.8 91.0 1,287.4 7.2 56.3 1,193.6
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Notes to the accounts

3 Segmental analysis (continued)

1997 1996
Geographical segment . Intra-segment  Inter-segment Third parties  Intra-segment  Inter-segment Third parties
by origin £m £m £m £m Em £m
UK 19.3 76.1 1,180.3 57.0 1.7 1.086.2
Continental Europe - - 11.6 - - 31.0
Americas - 0.9 38.2 0.3 0.4 46.3
Africa - - - - - 4.9
Asia Pacific 23 .1 57.3 3.2 0.9 15.2
Total 21.6 771 1,287.4 60.5 3.0 1,193.6
1987
Geographical segment Intra-segment  Inter-segment Third parties
by destination £m £m £m
UK 14.3 76.1 1,004.4
Continental Europe 21 - 81.7
Americas 1.0 0.9 42.0
Africa - - 4.0
Asia Pacific 4.2 0.1 65.6
Total 21.6 77.1 1,287.4
In 1896 turnover by destination did not materially differ from turnover by origin.
Profit before tax 1997 1997 1996 1996

(Restated: see note 6)

£m Em £m £m
Utifities 4121 3931
International operations
- to be retained 2.2 (10.0}
-~ to be discontinued 0.1 2.3 (28.0) (38.0)
Producis:
- 1o be retained 4.4 2.9
- sold or closed - 4.4 (0.4) 25
Services 5.5 2.0
Insurance and Property 18.9 19.1
Other activities {2.5) {2.6)

440.7 3761

Other non-cperating exceptional items:
International operations - (97.2)
Products and Services - - 2.2 {(95.0)
Profit on ordinary activities before interest and taxation 430.7 2811
Interest (56.7) (52.4)
Non-recurring premium on the repurchase of Convertible Bonds (12.2) -
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 371.8 2287

The segmental profit before interest and taxation shown above is to third parties. Operating profit shown in the operating
review on pages 4 to 10, which is defined as profit before interest and taxation, is inclusive of inter-segment trading.
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Notes to the accounts

3 Segmental analysis (continued)

Net assets

Ultilities

Intermational operations
- to be retained

- to be discontinued

Products:

- 1o be retained

- soid or clesed
Services

Insurance and Property
Other activities

Net cabt

Net assets

By geographical segment

UK

Continental Europe
Americas

Africa

Asgia Pacific

Other non-operating exceptional tems

interest

Non-recurring premium on the repurchase of Convertible Bonds

Net debt

Total

Profit/(loss) before tax

1997 1597 1996 19886
m fm £m £Em
3,177.8 2,934.7
5.6 8.2
{26.1) {20.5) {49.3) (41.1)
' 15.2 15.2
- 15.2 - 15.2
5.7) 9.1
15.5 07
(127.3) {108.9)
3,055.0 2,811.7
(889.5) (641.4)
2,165.5 2,i70.3

Net assets/(liabilities)

1897 1996 1997 1996
£m £m £m £m
434.1 403.3 3,051.2 2,833.6
0.7 (17.4) (17.2) (37.8}
3.2 {0.6) 8.0 5.3
- - - (0.9)
2.7 (9.2) 13.0 1.5
440.7 376.1 3,055.0 2,811.7
- (95.0}
440.7 2811 3,055.0 2,81.7
(56.7) (52.4)
{(12.2) -
(889.5) (641.4)
371.8 228.7 2,165.5 2170.3

Segmental result before tax and net assets of associated undertakings are not separately disclosed since they are not

material to the Group.
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4 Operating costs

1997 1997 1896
Analysis of operating costs by type of expense £m £m fm
Manpower 236.8
Utilisation of 1296 provision (see note 2) (4.6) 2322 248.6
Materials and consumables 139.2 109.3
Other opsrating charges 348.9
Utilisation of 1996 provision {see note 2) (3.0) 3459 352.7
infrastructure rerngwals charge 384 37.5
Depreciation:
- owneg assets 97.6 89.6
- assets held under finance leases 10.5 1.4
Rentals under operating leases:
~ hire of glant and machinery 7.4 4.7
- other 3.8 3.1
Research and development 84 8.4
Foreign currency gains (see note 1)) (2.0} 0.4
881.4 865.7
Own work capitalised {22.4) (37.8)
859.0 827.9
i Included in other operating charges are: 1997 1996
£m £m
Auditors’ remuneration in respect of:
- audit work 0.6 Q.7
= other statutory and regulatory requirements 0.1 0.1
- non-audit work : UK 0.2 0.3
 overseas - -
0.9 1.1

i Included in auditors’ remuneration is £82,000 in respect of audit fees incurred by the Company in 1997 (1996: £70,000).
i The foreign currency gains in 1997 are net of unrealised gains and losses of £7.7m and £5.7m respectively.
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5

Information regarding Directors and employees

The Company's policy regarding the remuneration of the Chairman and Executive Directors is set out in the report of the
Remuneration Committee on pages 18 to 20 of the Annual Report together with details of the remuneration of individual

Executive Directors and their shareholdings in the Company on pages 19 and 20.

The remuneration for non-Executive Directors consists of fees for their services in connection with Board and Board
Committee meetings. Fees are reviewed biennially by the Chairman and Executive Directors and were increased from
£18.300 to £19,500 from 1 July 19325. In the case of Sir Christopher Leaver, fees receivable in his role as Vice Chairman

remain unchanged at £45,000. The review used external comparative data for companies of a similar size. Non-Executive
Directors do not have contracts of service, are not eligible for pension scheme membership and do not participate in any of

the Company’s bonus, long-term incentive schemes or other benefits.

Fees Number of Shares at 31 March

1997 1996 1967 1996
Non-Executive Directors: £000 £000
Sir Christopher Leaver 45 45 4,537 3,931
R M Carr 19 19 3,000 3,000
D C Clementi 5 - 1,000 -
Sir Peter Hamop - 8 - -
A J Hobson 19 19 1,000 1,000
J M Thomson 19 19 2,000 2,000
E J Worlidge 19 19 2,521 2,389

The 1997 non-Executive fees for D C Clementi are for a part year since he was appointed with effect from 1 January 1097,

The 1996 non-Executive fees for Sir Peter Harrop are for a part year since he retired on 25 July 1995.

1997 1098
Directors’ remuneration in total £000 £000
Fees for non-Executive Directors i28 130
Remuneration of Executive Directors (see page 19) 809 839
Gains made on the exercise of share options (see page 20) 139 -
Compensation for loss of office - 384
Retirement benefits are accruing to one Director on a salary sacrifice money purchase pension scheme and to three
Directors under a defined benefit scheme.
Transactions with Directors and officers
There are no transactions or arrangerments which are required to be disclosed under the provisions of the Companies
Act 1985 nor are there any related party transactions with the Directors or connected persons.

1997 1996

Employee information £m £m
Group employment costs including Executive Directors’ remuneration were:
- Salaries and wages 205.8 212.1
- Social security costs 18.8 21.2
- Pension contributions {note 27) 12,9 19.2
Total 2375 2525

Total employrment costs contain £3.7rm (1998: £2.3m) and £1.6m (1996; £1.6m) which are included in the infrastructure

renewals charge and research and development costs respectively in note 4.
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5

Information regarding Directors and employees (continued)

Average monthly number of persons employed by the Group, 1967 1906
including Executive Directors, analysed by class of business number number
Utilities 5,912 6,338
Internaticnal operations 1,397 1,519
Products 605 791
Services 2,976 1,847
Property 47 -
Other activities 64 65
Total 11,001 10,360

The Services and Property segmental monthly average number of employees in 1997 have increased by 202 and 47 in
respect of the transfer of employees from the Utilities segment.

1907 1996

restated

Other operating income £m £m
Realised/unrealised gains and losses on fixed interest short-term investments 3.1 34
Insurance investrment incorme 3.9 3.5

Profit/{loss) from interests in associated undertakings 0.7 {0.1)
Net rents receivable 1.4 1.6
Miscellaneous 3.2 2.3
12.3 10.4

Other operating income has been restated to include insurance investment incorme which has previously been accounted
for in interest receivable. In the opinion of the Directors, investment income is fundamentat to the operations of an insurance
company and therefore more appropriate to include in operating income.

1997 1996
restated
(see note 6)
Interest £m £m
Bark loans, overdrafts and other loans:
~ Repayable within five years otherwise than by instaiments {10.1} (2.1}
- Repayable within five years by instalments (2.8) (2.6)
- Not wholly repayable within five years (45.1) (51.1)
Finance charges in respect of finance leases {13.4) (12.8)
Other finance charges 0.2) (0.7)
Interest payable and similar charges (71.6) (69.3)
Interest receivable 14.9 16.9
Total {56.7) (52.4)
1997 1996
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities £m em
Corporation tax on income at 339% 384 -
Overseas taxation 3.5 0.6
Advance corporation tax written off 311 24.6
Prior years advance corporation tax (ACT) relieved (21.6) -
51.4 25.2

No liability to UK mainstream corporation tax arose on the 1996 result for the year because of the availability of capital
allowances and tax losses brought forward.
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10

11

12

Deferred taxation

The Group's medium and long-term plans for capital investment together with the capital alowances available in respect of
the asset base transferred from Tharmes Water Authority on vesting indicate that for the foreseeable future the amount of
tax allowancss in respect of eligible plant and machinery will exceed the depreciation on existing and new assets.
Accordingly. no provision for deferred taxation is required in the Group accounts. If a provision for deferred tax had been
made on ths full liability method, there would have been a corporate tax charge of £121.9m (1986: £108.6m).

Group

1997 1996

An analysis of amounts unprovided is as follows: €m £m
Acceleratec capital allowances: .

- Infrastruciure assets 302.5 272.2

- Other assets 354.2 314.9

Other timing differences {3.9) (12.58)

Lossss {©.5) (2.1)

Advance coporation tax (195.8) (141.6)

456.5 430.9

Advance corporation tax includes £44.9m in respect of the purchase of shares which has been charged directly to Profit and
Loss Reserves (see note 24).

As infrastructure assets are not depreciated. deferred taxation will crystellise only in the event of any disposal of these assets
at amounts in excess of their written down value for tax purposes. In the opinion of the Directors the likelihcod of such a
liability crystalising in the future is remote.

Prefit for the financial year
Of the consolidated profit attributable to the shareholders, £108.0m (1886: £477.7m) has been dealt with in the accounts of

the Company. A separate profit and loss account for the Company has not been presented as permitted by Section 230 of
the Companies Act 1985.

1897 1986
pence pence

Dividends on equity shares per share £m per share £m

Interim 11.2 44.1 9.2 37.0

Final proposad 23.2 87.9 191 77.2

34.4 132.0 28.3 14.2

Certain sharsholders have elected to receive shares in lieu of current and future dividends. Details of shares allotted under
the scrip dividend option during the year ended 31 Mareh 1997 are shown in note 23.

Earnings per ordinary share 1997 1996
Profit for the financial year £320.4m £203.5m
Earnings per ordinary share 82.8p 50.7p
Non-recurring premium on the repurchase of Convertible Bonds 27p -
Other non-operating exceptional items - 23.6p
Adjusted eamings per ordinary share 85.5p 74.3p

Eamings per ordinary share have been calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year (387.0m).

Adjusted eamings per share is based on eamings before the deduction of the non-recurring premium incurred on the
repurchase of convertible bonds and, in the opinion of the Directors, more appropriately reflects the underlying financial
performance of the Group.

Eamings per ordinary share in 1996 was 56.8p on a nil distribution basis. The nil distribution basis, assumes no charge for
irecoverable ACT as this arises sclely from the declaration of the dividend.

There would be no significant dilution of eamings per ordinary share from the exercise of outstanding share options.
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Group Company
Land and Infrastructure Plant and Plant and
. buildings assets equipment Total equipment
13 Tangible fixed assets £m £m €m £m £m
Net cost at 1 April 1996 1,309.6 1,132.9 1,286.3 3,728.8 06
Foreign exchange adjustments (4.7) ~ (1.3) {6.0) -
Additions at cost 90.0 127.4 192.3 400.7 06
Disposal of subsidiaries - - (3.6) (3.6) -
Disposals (1.1) - (52.6) (53.7) -
Reclassifications 1.4 - (1.4) - -
Capital contributions - (28.4) - {28.4) -
Net cost at 31 March 1997 1,395.2 1,231.9 1,419.7 4,046.8 12
Depreciation at 1 April 1996 2452 - 360.2 605.4 0.4
Foreign exchange adjustments (1.1 - (0.7) {1.8) -
Provided during the year 25.2 - 82.9 108.1 0.1
Disposal of subsidiaries - - {2.4) {2.4) -
Disposals (0.3) - (50.1) (50.4) -
Reclassifications 0.4 - (0.4) - -
Depreciation at 31 March 1997 269.4 - 389.5 658.9 0.5
Net book value
At 31 March 1997 1,125.8 1,231.9 1,030.2 3,387.9 07
At 31 March 19¢6 1.064.4 1,132.¢ 926.1 3,123.4 0.2

i Inorder to give a true and fair view (note 1e) the cost of infrastructure assets is stated after the deduction of capital
contributions amounting to £149.7m (1996: £121.3m).

it The net book value of land and buildings is anelysed as follows:

Group
1997 1996
£m £m
Freehold land and buildings 1,091.8 1,032.9
Leaseholds: over 50 years 28.0 26.3
under 50 years 6.0 8.2
1,125.8 1,064.4

it No depreciation has been charged on freehold land included at a cost of £11.8m (1996: £i1.6m).

iv Details of the Group's tangible fixed assets which are

held under finance leases are: Cost Net book value
1997 1996 1997 1996
£m £m £m £m
Plant and eguipment 291.0 259.8 235.9 212.2

v Tangible fixed assets at 31 March 1997 include £398.9m (1996: £322.2m)} of assets in the course of construction.
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15

Fixed asset investments’

Value at 1 April 1996

Foreign exchange adjustments
Addfiions

Amounts written off

Share of profits for the year

Value at 31 March 1997

Group

Group Company

Interests in Irvestment in undertakings

asscciated undertakings subsidiary associated
em cm £m

17.5 930.6 7.5

{C.8) (2.5) -

16.9 42.1 7.5

- (29.6) -

0.7 - -

34.3 940.6 15.0

The cost of the Group's interests in associated undertakings at 31 March 1997 amounted to £38.6m (1996: £21.7m). The
Groupn's share of post-acquisition accumulated profits at 31 March 1997 was £0.1m (1996: loss of £0.6rm). The associated

undertakings are unlisted.

Company

Imvestments amounting to £42.1m were made by the Cornpany during the year through subsidiary and associated
undertakings to assist in the development of the Group's non-regulated trading activities.

Stocks and work in progress

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress

Finished goods and goods for resale
Payment on account of raw materials

Total

Work in progress includes long-term contract balances as follows:

Net cost less foreseeable losses
Applicable payments on account

Group

1997 1966
£m £
16.3 17.8

5.5 16.0

3.5 5.8

- 0.2

253 32.8

191.6 167.2
(191.3) {170.1)
0.3 (2.9}

Applicable payments on account in excess of, or below, net costs less foreseeable losses are included in creditors: amounts
falling due within one year or debtors: amounts recoverable on contracts respectively.

The Company has no stocks and work in progress.
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18 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Debtors

Due within one year:

Trade debtors

Amounts recoverable on contracts
Arnounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income
Infrastructure renewals expenditure

Due after more than one year:

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Prepayments and accrued income

Other debtors

Total

Current asset investments

Fixed term deposits and certificates of deposit

Fixed and floating interest rate securities

Total

The market value of investrnents is not significantly different from cost.

Bank loans

Bank overdrafts

Other loans

Obligations under finance leases
Progress claims and advance payments
Trade creditors:

- operating

~ capital

Bills of exchange payable

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Advance corporation tax

Taxation and social security

Accruals and deferred income

Cther creditors

Proposed dividend

Total

Thames Water 39

Group Company

1997 1996 1897 1996
£m Zm £m £m
182.8 1751 - -
10.0 12.0 - -
- - 103.7 1456
26.4 14.8 - -
78.0 73.3 0.9 11
83 1.8 - -
305.5 277.0 104.6 148.7
0.4 59 - -
0.3 0.4 - -
0.2 0.7 - -
306.4 284.0 104.6 148.7
Group Company

1997 1986 1997 1966
£m £m £m £m
54.0 102.0 10.5 48.0
80.1 16.0 22.8 568.2
134.1 218.0 33.3 114.2
Group Company

1997 1905 1997 1996
£m £m £m £rm
2371 64.4 212.7 32.7
49.1 40.7 30.9 13.¢
4.8 086 - -
1.4 25 - -
100.7 94.8 - -
61.1 58.9 - -
97.8 87.5 - -
7.5 - - -

- - 39.7 291
30.8 27.9 30.8 27.9
25.0 6.3 - -
144.2 1208 4.3 0.3
17.3 8.8 4.5 24.0
87.9 77.5 87.9 77.5
864.7 590.7 410.8 205.4
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19 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Bank lcans

Other loans

Obligations under finance leases
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Deferred income

Other creditors

Total

20 £82m 9%2% Convertible Subordinated Bonds due 2006

Group Company

1997 1996 1997 1996
£m £m £m £rm
263.5 2213 - -
278.2 289.0 - -
250.0 216.7 - -
- - 102.2 1i8.7
40.1 36.9 - -
7.0 97 - -
839.5 7736 102.2 118.7

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled 9%% Convertible Bonds to the nominal value of £35.6m for a

price of £47.8m. The non-recurring premium of £12.2m on the repurchase is separately identified in the consolidated

profit and loss account. In addiion, bondholders have converted bonds to the value of £46.2m into 10.8m ordinary shares.

At 31 March 1997, all of the £82m 9%:% Convertible Bonds had either been converted or repurchased.

21 Borrowings

Bank loans and overdrafts

- Within one year

- Between one and two years
Between two and five years
After more than five years

Other loans and finance leases
- Within one vear
- Between one and two years
- Between two and five years
- After more than five years: other loans
. convertible debt

Total borrowings

i Loans are repayable between 1997 and 2030.

i Loans wholly repayable after more than five years hence are:

~ Bank Loans
- Other loans

Group Company

1997 1996 1997 1996
£m £m £m £m
286.2 1051 243.6 46.6
15.5 6.6 - -
50.4 48.4 - -
197.6 166.3 - -
549.7 326.4 243.6 48.6
13.7 3.1 - -
1.9 3.2 - -
164.5 4.4 - —
362.5 4981 - -
- 81.8 - 81.8
542.6 580.6 - 81.8
1,092.3 917.0 243.6 128.4
Group Cornpany

1997 1996 19897 1996
fm em £m cm
100.0 50.0 - -
124.4 362.2 - a1.8
224.4 4i2.2 - 81.8
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21 Borrowings (continued)
i Other ioans include:
- £1580mM 10¥2% Guaranteed Bonds due 2001
~ $150m 6%% Notes due 2004
- loans totaling £32.4m (1996: £32.4m) are secured on the revenues of Thames Water Utilities.
iv The aggregate amount of loans repayable by instalments any part of which falls due for repayment after more
than five vears hence are:

Groug

1697 1996

£m &m

- Bark Loans 170.9 173.5
- QOther loans 3.7 4.3
- Financze leases 248.6 213.2
423.2 391.0

v The Group is committed to further outstanding lease obligations of £16.7m (1996: £43.7m) to fund future capital
investment,

vi The range of interest rates on outstanding bank loans are 3.5% to 11.5% {1996: 8.5% to 11.5%) and on other loans 3% to

1% (1996: 3% to 11%). These interest rates are those contracted on the undertying borrowings before taking account of

interest rate protection. Interest rates on finance leases are linked to LIBOR.

The foliowing interest rate protection arangements are in place:

Vi

- the Company has arranged interest rate collars fixing the maximum and minimum rates payable on sterling borrowings of
£90m. The weighted average maximum rate payable is 8.18%, the weighted average minimum rate payable is 6.52% with
an average remaining term of 18 months. '

~ the Group has In place long-dated interest rate swaps which fix the rate of interest at an average of 9.33% on sterling
borrowings of £15m for a remaining term of 11 years,

- the Group has in place long-dated interest rate Swaps which convert £35m of steriing borrowings from an average fixed
rate of 10.4% to floating rates (based on LIBOR) for a weighted average remaining term of two years.

Group Company
Closure and

.. . contract Insurance Pensions Other
2P rovisions for liabilities provisions liakilities Other (note 27) Total provisions
and charges £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 April 1996 8i.6 33.5 4.0 4.8 123.9 1.5
Foreign exchange adjustments 0.8 - - (0.4) 0.4 -
Provided during the year 0.9 3.6 0.8 0.4 5.7 -
Utilised during the year (36.8) - (0.4} (0.) (37.3) (1.4)
Released during the vear (1.7) - {1.0) (3.0} {5.7) -
Balance at 31 March 1997 44.8 374 3.4 1.7 87.0 0.1

Of the £36.8m utilisation of closure and contract provisions, £35.7m is in respect of the 1996 non-operating
exceptional items.
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Group
and Company
1997 1988
23 Share capital £m em
Authorised .
525,020,001 ordinary shares of £1 each 525.0 525.0
Allotted, called up and fully paid
379,386,486 ordinary shares of £1 each (1996: 403,981,137) 379.4 404.0
Number of shares allotted Consideration
1997 1996 1997 1996
Details of ordinary shares allctied during the year are as follows: 000 000 £m £m
Scrip dividends 3,339 3,109
Purchase of own shares {41,364} - (224.6) -
Conversion of Convertible Bonds {note 20) 10,799 -
Employee share schemaes:
- Sharesave Scheme 1,884 676 4.6 1.5
- Executive Share Option scheme 503 316 1.9 1.2
~ Profit Sharing Scheme 224 1563 12 0.8
(24,615) 4,254 (216.9) 3.5

Scrip dividends

Ordinary shares were allotted to ordinary shareholders consequent on the offer of a scrip dividend alternative as follows:
- 1996 final dividend 1,875,990 shares - 15 August 1986

- 1997 interim dividend 1,363,115 shares ~ 17 January 1997.

Purchase of own shares

Cn 31 July 1996, the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled, 41,364,482 ordinary shares representing 10% of its
issued share capital. The shares were purchased at a price of 543p.

Employee share schemes

The Company has adopted the following schemes for employees to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company in

accordance with the rules of the respective schemes.

- the Thames Water Sharesave scheme is a ‘save as you earn’ share option scherne open to all eligible employees with
options exercisable, in normal circumstances, after completion of a three, five or seven year contract
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23 Share capital (continued)
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- the Thames Water Executive Share Option scheme is a scheme for senior executives with options exercisable between
the t~ird and tenth anniversaries of the date of grant. No options were granted under the scheme during the year

- the Thames Water Profit Sl-'}aring scherne is a scheme open to all eligible employees whereby a bonus may be declared in
the iorm of shares in Thames Water Pic, subject to profit targets being attained and to the conditions for eligibility. Shares

have been appropriated under this scheme and are held in trust under the terms of the scheme.

Options granted and outstanding at 31 March 1997

Number

of ordiinary Option price Norral date
Date of grant shares per share of exercise
Thames Water Sharesave scheme
Three-yzar scheme
28 November 1896 516,803 442p Feb 2000 - Jul 2000
Five-yez- scheme
29 November 1991 32,161 296p Feb 1997 - Jul 1997
10 July 392 283,913 349p Oct 1997 - Mar 1998
9 July 1833 475,461 372p Oct 1998 - Mar 1999
1 December 1984 1,161,930 421p Feb 2000 - Jul 2000
30 November 1995 879,993 420p Feb 2001 ~ Jul 2001
28 November 1996 575,278 442p Fel> 2002 - Jul 2002
Seven-y=sar scheme
12 December 1989 73,292 176p Feb 1997 - Jul 1997
13 July 1290 114,478 227p Oct 1997 - Mar 1998
12 July 1291 225,380 288p Oct 1998 — Mar 1989
29 November 1991 232,924 296p Feb 1999 - Jul 1999
10 July 1292 183,547 349p Oct 1999 - Mar 2000
9 July 1293 124,040 372p Qct 2000 - Mar 2001
1 Decernber 1994 337,180 4210 Feb 2002 - Jjul 2002
30 November 1995 261,766 420p Feb 2003 -~ Jul 2003
28 November 1996 185,007 4420 Feb 2004 - Jul 2004
Thames Water Executive Share Option scheme
17 January 1990 8,000 278p 1993 - 2000
2 July 1€ 130,000 347p 1994 - 2001
15 November 1991 11,000 356p 1884 - 2001
24 June 1992 68,000 418p 1985 - 2002
19 November 1293 25,000 521p 1986 - 2003
8 December 1994 337,400 453p 1997 - 2004
8 Decernber 1995 335,020 560p 1998 - 2005
Thames Water Long Term Restricted Share Plan
Awards made giving conditional rights to acquire shares

Number of

Date of award ordinary shares Vesting date
2 August 1996 16,696 31 March 2000

These shares will only vest in full if the Company’'s performance ranks first or second in a com

period (see page 18).

parator group over a four year
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Capital Profit ,
Share Share redemption and loss 1997 1996
capital premium reserve account Total Total
24 Movement in Shareholders’ Fund em £rn £rm £m £m em

The Group
Balance at 1 April 404.0 8.2 - 1,758.1 2,170.3 2,035.2
Foreign exchange adjustrnents - - - 5.6 5.6 2033
Profit “or the financial year - - - 3204 3204 (1.2)
Dividends on equity shares - - - (132.0) (132.0} (114.2)
Goodwill wiitten back - - - - - 28.3
Adjus:ment for the issue of scripp shares 3.4 - - 151 18.5 15.5
New share capital subscribed (see note 23) 26 5.2 - - 7.8 3.5
Purchase of own shares (41.4) - 41.4 (226.2) (226.2) -
Advance corporation tax on the purchase
of sheres - - - (44.9) {44.9) -
Conversion of convertible bonds 10.8 354 - - 46.2 -
Share issue expenses - (0.2) - - (0.2} (0.3}
Balance at 31 March 3794 43.6 414 1,696.1 2,165.5 2,170.3
The Company
Balance at 1 April 404.0 8.2 - 412.8 825.0 4428
Profit for the financial year - - - 108.0 109.0 477.7
Dividends - - - (132.0) {132.0) (114.2)
Adjustment for the issue of scrip shares 3.4 - - 151 18.5 15.5
New share capital subscribed (see note 23) 2.6 5.2 - - 7.8 35
Purchase of own shares (41.4) ' - 41.4 (226.2) (226.2) -
Advance corporation tax on the purchase
of shares - - - {44.9) {44.9) -
Conversion of convertible bonds 10.8 35.4 - - 46.2 -
Share issue expenses - {0.2) - - {0.2) (0.3)
Balance at 31 March 379.4 48.6 414 133.8 603.2 825.0

The cumulative goodwill taken to Group reserves, net of goodwill relating to undertakings disposed of, as at 31 March 1997
amount to £71.5m (1996: £71.5m).

The total cost of £228.2m for the purchase of own shares comprises cost of shares (£224.6m) and other expenses {(£1.6m).

25 Operating leases
At 31 March 1997 the Group was committed to making the following payments in respect of non-cancelieble operating leases.

Group Company

1987 1996 1997 1996
Land and buildings £m £m £m £m
Leases which expire: ]
- Within one year 0.5 0.3 - -
- Between two and five years 0.8 0.6 - -
- After more than five years 3.8 2.1 0.4 0.4
Total 5.9 3.0 0.4 0.4
Other
Leases which expire:
~- Within one year 0.6 0.7 - -
- Between two and five years 4.4 4.1 - -
- After more than five years 0.2 - - -

Total 5.2 4.8 - -
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27

Group

1997 1096

Capital commitments . fm £m
Contracted for out not provided in the financial statements 176 154

i Inagdition tc these commitments, the Group has long-term capital investment plans to meet shortfalls in performance
and asset condition and to provide for new demand and growth.
i The Cormpary has no capital commitments.

Pension schemes
Pensicn arrangzments for the majority of the Group's employees are of the defined benefit type funded through pension
schemes whose assets are held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds.

. The total ongoing penrsion cost for the Group during the year ended 31 March 1997 was £12.9m (1996: £19.2m) of which

28

29

30

£0.7m (1996: £1.3m) relates to the overseas schemes. The pension cost relating to the UK schemes is assessed in
accordance witn advice received from Bacon & Woodrow, the consulting actuaries to the schemes. The pension costs
relating 1o the overseas schemes are assessed in accordance with local practice, with liabilties provided to mest the
pensions reporing requirements of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice Number 24 where material differences arise.

Contributions tc the UK schemes for the year ended 31 March 1997 are based on actuarial reviews of the various schemes
as at 6 April 1993. For the two largest UK schemes, actuarial valuations as at 6 April 1996 were completed during the year.
The pension charge for the year endad 31 March 1997 reflects the surplus disclosed by these valuations; contributions by the
employer will be reduced from 1 April 1997, The principal assumptions used in determining the pension cost were that salary
increases, excluding allowance for promotional increases, would be 7% per annum and that the rate of retum on
investrments weuld armount to 9% per annum. Pension increasas are pre-funded in line with inflation for three of the four UK
pension schemeas and are granted in fine with the rules of each scherne and any statutory requirements. For the remaining
UK scheme, pension increases are at the rate of 5% per annum or the annual movement in the Retail Price Index if less.
Dividenc growth is assumed 1o be 4% per annurm. ’

The actuarial methods used were the Projected Unit method and the Attained Age method as considered appropriate by
the actuaries.

For the two largest schemes of the Group the total market value of assets as at the last valuation date was £654m and the
actuarial value of these assets represented 111% of the value of the benefits that had accrued to members after allowing for
expected future salary increases.

Related parties

During the year, the Group completed the following sales to related parties, alf of which were undertaken at arm’s length
commercial prices in the ordinary course of business.

Sale value Balance
Related party Status £m em
lzrmit Su As Associate 66.2 0.1 (debtor)
Pathum Thari Water Company Associate 21.5 0.7 (creditor)
Bovis Thames (Shanghai) Associate 8.3 -
United Water Associate 0.7 -
Thames Dick Super Aguaduct Partners Inc. Associate 35 0.4 (debton)
Binnie Tharmes Water Ltd. Associate 0.4 0.2 (debtor)
Guarantees

The Cormpany has guaranteed the overdrafts and loans of certain subsidiaries up to a maximum of £412.1m (1996:
£378.8m). The Cormpany has also guaranteed facilities for contract bonding on behalf of certain subsidiaries amounting to
£135.1m at 31 March 1997 (1996: £166.6m). In addition, there are a number of parent company guarantees in respect of
subsidiary company contractual obligations which have been entered into in the normal course of business. No loss is
expected 1o arise under these arrangements.

Thames Water Utilities Limited

Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment under which Tharres Water Utiliies Limited operates requires specified
accounting statements to be published with its annual accounts or those of its parent company. Anyone requiring a copy of
these accounts including the specified statements for the year ended 31 March 1997 should apply to: The Company
Secretary, Thames Water Plc, Nugent House, Vastemn Road, Reading RG1 8DB. Tel: 0345 414140 (calls from the UK will be
charged at the lozal rate). '
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31 Group undertakings

At 3" March 1297, the Group held more than 10% of the allotted share capital of the following principal trading undertakings.

Proporticn of shares held

Country of incorporation

Class of share

Subsidiary undertakings registration and operation capital held Direcily Indirectly Nature of business
Utilities:
Tharss Water Utilities Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% Water and
wastewater services
CONNECT 2020C Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% Procurement logistics
International Operations:
Tharas Water International England and Wales Crdinary 100% Management compariy
Sanvices Holdings Limited
Tharmeas Water international England and Wales Ordinary 100% Marketing of technical
Sarvices Limited managerial services
Thamas Water Overseas Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% Management company
Tharmes Water Overseas England and Wales Ordinary 100% Marketing of technical
onsultancy Limited managerial services
PWT Projects Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% Design contracting
Water Projects International Limited England and Wales Crdinary 100% Design contracting
Thames Water Asia/Pacific Pty Limited Australia Ordinary 100%: Design contracting
Tharnes Water International Singapore Crdinary 100% Design contracting
{Singapore) Pte Limited
Thames Water Engineering {Malaysia) Sdn.Bhd. Malaysia Crdinary 100% Design contracting
Thames Water (Malaysia) Sdn.Bhd. Malaysia Crdinary 90% Water operations
and maintenance
Kelantan Water (Malaysia) Sdn.Bhd. Malaysia Ordinary 60% Water operations
and maintenance
Thames Water International Thailand Qrdinary 1C0% Water operations
{Tnailand) Limited and maintenance
Thameas Water International Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Design contracting
(Hong Kong) Limited
Sirnon Hartley (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Keng Qrdinary 100% Wastewater projects
Thames Water Dewtschland GmbH Germany Ordinary 100% Management company
Mitterdeutsche Wasser-und Germany Ordinary 100% Water contracting
Umwelttechnik AG (UTAG) and consuliancy
Products:
Thames Water Products England and Wales Ordinary 100% Management company
and Services Limited
Simon Hartley Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% Water and wastewater
equipment
PCl Wlembrane Systerns Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% Municipad and industrial
membrane filtration
T M Products Limited England and Wales Crdinary 100% Fipeline products,
water treatment
and disinfection
Thames Water Technologies England and Wales Ordinary 100% Product technology
Tharnes Water Moldings Inc USA Common 100% Management company
Convertible 100%
Ashbrook Corporation Inc USA Crdinary 100% Water and wastewater

equipment




Notes to the accounts

31 Group undertakings (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings

Propertion of shares held

Thames Water 47

Country of incorporation

Class of share

{continuaz registration and operation capital heid Directly Indirectiy Nature of business
Products: (cont~ued)
Hydro-Azrobics Inc USA Crdinary 100% Packaged sewage
treatment
F B Lecosid Cempany Inc USA Ordinary 100% Water products
Services;
Thames Water Znvironmental England and Wales Ordinary 100% Management cornpany
Servicas Lim-ed
Metre Rod Plc England and Wales Ordinary 100% Brain and pipe
cleaning services
Morgan Collis Group Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% Sewerage services
Subterre Holdings Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% Pipeline rehabilitation
services
Thames Waste England and Wales Ordinary 100% Waste management
Maneagement Limited and treatment
Thames Incineration and England and Wales Ordinary 100% Waste and incineration
Recycling Limited facilities management
Thames Water Contracting Ple England and Wales Ordinary 100% Utilities and grounds
maintenance
Property and Insurance:
Isis Insurance Company Limited Isle of Man Ordinary 100% Insurance
Kennet Properties Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% Property
Thames Water Investments England and Wales Ordinary 100% Property
Limited
Thames Water Property Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% Property
Thames Water Developments England and Wales Ordinary 100% Property

Limited

A full list of subsidiary undertakings within the Group will be filed at Companies House with the Company's annual returmn.

Associated undertakings

Binnie Thames Water Limited England and Wales Ordinary 50%  International consultancy
St Jarmes Homes England and Wales Ordinary 50% Property
Thames Dick Super Aquaduct USA Ordinary 50% Water operations
Partnars Inc and maintenance
[zrmit Su As Turkey Ordinary 35% Water operations
and maintenance

Pathum Thani Water Thailand Ordinary 30% Water operations
Compgany Limited and maintenance
BJT Water Company Limited Thailand Ordinary 40% Industrial estate
managemert

Thames Water Japan Limited Japan Crdinary 50% Finance company
United Water International Australia Ordinary 47.5% Water operations
Pty Limited and maintenance
Bovis Thames (Shanghai) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 50% Management company




48 Tharmr2s Water 1]
Group five year summary

Profit and loss account

1997 1996 1995 1994 1993
Year endes 31 March i £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover: continuing operations 1,287.4 1,193.6 1,173.6 1,104.8 1,044.4
Operating costs (859.0) (827.9) (816.0} (785.8) (769.2)
Operating exceptional items - - - (35.0) -
428.4 365.7 357.6 284.0 275.2
Other oparating income 12.3 10.4 2.4 9.8 1.6
QOperating profit 440.7 376.1 360.0 29038 286.8
Other nen-operating exceptional items - {95.0) - - -
Non-recurring premium on the repurchase
of Convertible Bonds (12.2) - - - -
interest (56.7) {52.4) (56.3) (5213 (35.5)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 371.8 2287 303.7 241.7 2513
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities (51.4) (25.2) (21.5) (19.4} (21.7}
Profit for the financial year 320.4 203.5 2822 2223 220.6
Capital investment 409.7 348.0 314.0 376.6 398.5
Earnings per share
- pre-exceptional items and bond premium 85.5p 74.3p 71.3p 65.8p 59.3p
- post-exceptional items and bond premium 82.8p 50.7p 71.3p 56.8p 59.3p
Dividend per share 34.4p 28.3p 25.3p 22.5p 21.0p
Balance sheet
1997 1096 1995 1994 1993
As at 31 March £m £rm £m £rn £m
Fixed assets ' 3,422.2 3,140.9 2,900.9 2,703.4 2,425.6
Net current assets/(liabilities) {330.2) 8.7 {(22.8) (73.3) {(114.9)
Creditors: amounts faling due
after more than one vear (839.5) (773.8) {718.5) (673.8) (502.9)
Convertible debt - (81.8) (81.4) (80.9) (80.5)
Provisions for liabilties and charges (87.0) (123.9) 43.0) {42.6) (36.8)
Net assets 2,165.5 2,170.3 2,035.2 1,832.8 1,690.5
Share capital 379.4 404.0 399.7 393.4 389.7
Share prermium 48.6 8.2 6.2 39 15
Capital redemption reserve 41.4 - - - -
Reserves and retained profits 1,696.1 1,758.1 1,629.3 1,435.5 1,299.3
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,165.5 2,170.3 2,035.2 1,832.8 1,690.5

Operating exceptional items in 1994 includes tumover of £11.6m and operating costs of £23.4m.

Other operating incorne has been restated to include insurance investment income which has previously been accounted for as
interest receivable (see note 6 to the accounts).

Paper used 157 this report1s of 50% recycled fire (10% post-consumer waste and 40% pre-consumer waste) and 50% totaly chiorine free virgin fiore with no added optical brghtenmg agents in coating.
Design Boo witford Desgn Photography Een Rice. Graeme Hams Type origination Wordwork pic Printing Westerham Press Printed in England.
“age & picture 3: Trainng at the Southwark Fire station Page 5 pcture 4 The pastry Kitchen in the London Hitton on Park Lane,



Shareholder information and services

Number of

Holders % Holding %
Category
Private persons 221,384 96.36 69,579,647 18.34
Banks and nominees 6,979 3.04 287,892,381 75.92
Insurance, investrment and other limited companies o926 0.40 9,848,016 2.60
Pension funds 39 0.02 7,262,885 1.1
Other corporate bodies 414 018 4,683,557 1.23
Total 229,742 100 379,366,486 100
Band analysis as at 31 March 1997
3-500 201,681 87.79 49,055,037 12.93
501-1,000 19,485 8.48 13,043,203 3.44
1,001-5,000 6,857 2.98 12,449,047 3.28
5,001-50,000 1,071 0.47 17,718,170 4.67
5£0,001-100,C00 212 0.09 16,523,747 4,09
100,001-1,000,000 383 0.17 113,243,954 29.85
1,000,001 and over 53 0.02 158,332,538 41,74
Total 229,742 100 379,366,486 100
Financial Calendar CREST

Financial year ended 31 March 1997

17 June 1997 Preliminary announcement of final resutts

7 July 1997 Ex-Dividend date for final dividend

11 July 1897 Record (or qualifying) date for 1997 final dividend
29 July 1997 Barbican Centre, London 1997 Annual General
Meeting

1 September 1997 Final dividend payable

Financial year ending 31 March 1988

4 November 1997 Announcerment of half-yearly results for
six months to 30 September 1997

February 1898 Interim dividend payable

Scrip Dividends

As shareholders were informed in Decernber 1996, the Scrip
Dividend Alternative Scheme has been discontinued. The
September 1997 dividend and all future dividends will be paid
it cash.

Payment Direct to Bank

Cash dividends mandated by shareholders to a bank or certain
building society accounts will be paid via BACS (Bankers
Automated Clearing Services). Tax vouchers will normally be
posted direct to the shareholder's registered address,

Shareholder Enguiries

The Company’s share register is maintained by The Royal Bank
of Scotland ple at the following address: The Registrar,

Tharmes Water Plc, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc,

PO Box 435, Owen House, 8 Bankhead Crossway North,
Edinburgh EH11 4BR. Shareholders who require help or
inforrmation about their shareholding may either write to the
Registrar at this address or telephone on 0131 523 6666.

Sharehclders with enquiries about Thames Water Fic or other
shareholder matters can write to the Thames Water
Shareholder Enquiry Unit, 9th Floor, Nugent House, Vastern
Road, Reading, Berkshire, RG1 8DB or telephone on 0345
414140 - lccal call rates apply from the UK.

Thames Water shares have now entered the CREST electronic
settlerment system, enablfing sharehclders who wish to transfer
their shares electronically to do so. Sharehciders who prefer to
retain their share certificates need do nething, and this may be
the most appropriate course of action for those who do not deal
in shares on a regular basis.

Thames Water CREST Service
A special Thames Water CREST Service will be available later

in the year, enabling shareholders to deal quickly and cost

effectively in CREST. Shareholders who transfer their shares into
the Thames Water CREST Service will receive all shareholder
information and dividend payments, and, in glace of their share
certificates, will be sent a half-yearly staterment with advice notes
whenever shares are bought or sold through the service. There
will be no annual charge for the maintenance of holdings in the
Thames Water CREST Service which is being administered by
The Royal Bank of Scotland.

Thames Water PEPs

The Cormpany has arranged with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
to offer shareholders a Single Company PEP (maximum
investment for 1997/98 tax year £3,000) and a General
(Corporate) PEP {maximum investment for 1997/98 tax year
£6,000) as a means of holding Thames Water shares without
incuring capital gains tax on any growth in treir value or paying
income tax on dividends, :

Share Dealing Service

Sharehclders are able to use a low cost postal dedlirg service
operated for Thames Water Plc by Cazenove & Co. A €10
minimum charge per transaction wil apply.

For details of any of the above services please contact The
Royal Bank of Scotland Registrars at the address on this page.

Share Price Information Line (CityCall)

Callers can obtain a current share price on 08891 222302. The
charge is 39p per minute cheap rate and 49¢ per minute peak
rate inclusive of VAT.

Thames Water Plo. Registered office: 14 Cavendish Place. _ondon WIM ONU, Reaistered in Enaland and Wales No. 2366623
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